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President's Message
會長序言

It is with great pleasure that I reflect on the remarkable 
achievements of the past year. The year 2023 brought about 
unexpected challenges as several major international events 
scheduled for 2022 were postponed to this year. However, 
amidst these changes, the resilience and determination of our 
athletes shone brightly.

I am thrilled that our Hong Kong, China athletes made 
sensational breakthroughs on the world stage in the 2023-2024 
season, with the Hangzhou 19th Asian Games standing out as 
a monumental moment in our athletic history. The dedication 
and hard work of our athletes, coaches, and support staff 
were truly inspiring, and their success brought immense 
pride to our entire community. Furthermore, a local licensed 
TV broadcaster secured the broadcasting rights of the Asian 
Games in Hong Kong, ensuring that the community had 
the opportunity to witness the games at no cost. This access 
not only celebrated the achievements of our athletes but 
also united the people of Hong Kong in a shared spirit of 
sportsmanship and pride.

Looking ahead, we are excited about the opportunities that 
the future holds. As we continue to navigate the complexities 
of the sports industry, we remain committed to upholding our 
values and pursuing excellence in all that we do.

I would like to express my deepest gratitude to the Government 
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, sponsors and 
the Olympic Community for their unwavering dedication and 
belief in our mission. Together, we have achieved great things, 
and I am confident that the best is yet to come.

回顧過去一
年運動員優
秀的表現，
我感到十分
欣慰。原定
於 2022 年
舉行的幾個
重 大 國 際
賽事延期，
為 2023 年帶來意想不到的挑戰。儘管面對
變化，運動員的韌性和決心不變，更顯大將
之風。

中國香港運動員在 2023-2024 年度國際舞
台上的突破備受矚目，其中杭州第 19 屆亞
運會成為本地體壇歷史的里程碑。運動員、
教練和支援團隊付出無數的汗水與努力，表
現振奮人心，整個社會為他們的成就感到無
比驕傲。此外，本地電視台取得杭州亞運轉
播權，讓大眾免費觀看各項重要賽事直播，
一同分享運動員的成就和喜悅，同時也散播
體育精神和自豪感，凝聚社會團結的力量。

展望未來，我深信機遇多於挑戰。即使面對
體育界種種複雜的考驗，我們依然會堅守核
心價值，在各方面繼續追求卓越。

最後，我要向香港特別行政區政府、贊助商
和奧林匹克大家庭致以萬分謝意，感謝他們
堅定不移支持我們的工作，與我們共創佳
績，願我們繼續攜手成就更多突破。

Timothy T. T. FOK, GBM, GBS, JP
President
Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China

中國香港體育協會暨奧林匹克委員會會長
霍震霆 大紫荊勳賢，GBS, JP
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REVIEW & PROSPECT
回顧與展望

Review & Prospect
回顧與展望

2023-2024 was a fruitful year for the local sports community. Our 
athletes achieved remarkable results in the Hangzhou Asian Games as 
well as other international and regional competitions, which inspired 
our young generation so much to pursue their dream step by step. To 
further promote sports development, the Sports Federation & Olympic 
Committee of Hong Kong, China (SF&OC) strengthened its connection 
with National Sports Associations (NSAs), sports organizations and 
partners over the past year to promote sports to the public through even 
more diversified activities and channels. SF&OC also enhanced its career 
and education support for the athletes to better meet their needs. 

During the preparation and games periods of the Hangzhou Asian Games 
and other multi-sports games, SF&OC maintained close communication 
with our athletes and teams to offer the most appropriate and immediate 
support, enabling our athletes to compete without worries and remain 
focus. Meanwhile, we provided instant updates on Team Hong Kong, 
China to the public via social platforms and produced a series of short-video 
interviews featuring the athletes' preparations and post-games experiences. 
These initiatives significantly deepened the public's understanding of our 
athletes and raised the community's attention to sports. 

To enhance the working competitiveness of our athletes after retirement, 
the Retired Athletes Transformation Programme and Sports Legacy 
Scheme continued to offer professional support from bringing in subsidies 
for education, identifying diverse career paths, to exploring the latest 
opportunity in the marketplace.   

To those potential young athletes, SF&OC also provided various exchange 
opportunities to escalate our athletes' horizon, with initiatives to drive the 
Youth Sports Exchange Programme in Greater Bay Area that allowed local 
and Mainland athletes to learn and share amongst themselves, which did in 
turn enhance their sports skills collectively. Moreover, our athletes would also 
gain a deeper understanding of our country's overwhelming development. 

We believe that good corporate governance is our backbone of 
development. It is the key to long-term and healthy development of 
sports. We will continue to maintain close communication with NSAs and 
stakeholders to uplift the governance level of member associations. 

Last but not least, we extend our sincere gratitude to the Government of 
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, NSAs, the sports community 
and our partners for their long-standing support. I wish the sports sector will 
continue to grow prosperously and vibrantly in the years to come. 

2023-2024
年度是香港
體壇豐收的
一年，一眾
運 動 員 在
杭州亞運，
以及其他國
際和地區賽
事均取得佳
績，激勵年輕人追夢。為進一步推動體育發
展，中國香港體育協會暨奧林匹克委員會在
過去一年加強與體育總會、體育機構和合作
夥伴的聯繫，透過更多元化的活動和渠道向
公眾推廣體育運動，同時加強對運動員就業
及教育的支援，全面照顧運動員的需要。 

在籌備參與杭州亞運和其他綜合項目運動
會，以及在比賽期間，我們一直與運動員和
其團隊保持緊密溝通，提供最適切和即時的
支援，讓運動員無後顧之憂下專注作賽。同
時，我們透過社交平台發放港隊即時資訊，
並製作一系列短片，訪問運動員備賽及賽後
感受，加深公眾對運動員的認識，提升社會
對體育運動的關注度，成效顯著。 

為協助香港運動員提升退役後在職場上的競
爭力，「退役運動員轉型計劃」和「奧夢成
真」計劃繼續為運動員提供專業支援，包括
進修資助、開拓多元出路、探索就業機會等。 

我們亦積極為有潛質的年輕運動員提供不同
的交流機會，增廣見聞，包括大灣區青年運
動員交流計劃，讓本地和內地運動員互相學
習，共同提升運動技能，同時透過體育認識
國家的非凡發展。 

良好的機構管治是運動項目長遠而健康發展
的關鍵，我們將持續與各體育總會和持分者
保持緊密溝通，提升屬會的機構管治水平。 

最後，我們衷心感謝香港特別行政區政府、
體育總會、體育界和合作夥伴的支持，祝願
未來本地體壇繼續蓬勃發展，大放異彩！

Edgar J. T. YANG, PDSM
Honorary Secretary General
Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China

中國香港體育協會暨奧林匹克委員會
義務秘書長
楊祖賜 PDSM
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2023-2024 Highlights
2023-2024 年度概覽

April to June 2023
2023 年 4 月至 6 月

June 2023
2023 年 6 月

July 2023
2023 年 7 月

April 2023
2023 年 4 月

July to December 2023
2023 年 7 月至 12 月

66th Festival of Sport

第 66 屆體育節 

2023 Olympic Day

2023 奧運日

Inter-School Fitness Challenge Competition

校際體能挑戰賽

Awards Presentation Ceremony of the Cathay 
2022 Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards

「國泰 2022 年度香港傑出運動員選舉」頒獎典禮 

SF&OC Greater Bay Area Youth Sports Exchange Programme 
2023-2024

2023-2024 年度港協暨奧委會大灣區青年運動員交流計劃
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August 2023
2023 年 8 月

September to October 2023
2023 年 9 月至 10 月

Ulaanbaatar 2023 East Asian Youth Games

烏蘭巴托 2023 東亞青年運動會

Hangzhou 19th Asian Games

杭州第 19 屆亞運會

January to February 2024
2024 年 1 月至 2 月

Gangwon 2024 Winter Youth Olympic Games

江原道 2024 冬季青年奧運會

HKACED Annual Event

「無憂追夢 延續運動緣」 運動嘉年華

February to March 2024
2024 年 2 月至 3 月
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Vision, Mission & Goals
理想、使命及目標

Vision

To become a leader in sport by bringing a National Olympic 
Committee and the National Sports Associations (NSAs) 
together as members of the Olympic Family in Hong Kong.

Mission 

To develop and promote the Olympic Movement in Hong Kong 
in accordance with the Olympic Charter. 

Goals 

1.	 To promote public interest in sporting activities in Hong Kong, 
through the organization of various sports events and 
competitions, to achieve a healthier lifestyle;

2.	 To encourage and reflect public opinion in requesting 
government to provide proper and better facilities for the 
practice of all sports;

3.	 To reconcile or arbitrate in any differences which may arise 
between NSAs or groups therein;

4.	 To coordinate all local sports organizations (SOs) in the 
promotion of sports at different levels from leisure to elite, 
to attain the ultimate goal of "Sport for All";

5.	 To work in conjunction with other global and regional 
organizations dedicated to the promotion of international 
competitions;

6.	 To foster Olympism, which promotes friendship, solidarity 
and fair play through sports;

7.	 To undertake the organization of international competitions 
and to support Hong Kong athletes' participation in them;

8.	 To select and send Hong Kong, China delegations to all 
multi-sports games, including the Olympic Games, Asian 
Games, and East Asian Youth Games; and

9.	 To carry out what is necessary to attain the above goals.

理想
領導香港體育界把地區奧林匹克委員會和
本地體育總會融合成為香港奧林匹克大
家庭。 

使命 

根據奧林匹克憲章在香港發展及推廣奧林
匹克運動。

目標 
1.	 透過舉辦體育活動及比賽，在香港推動

公眾對體育運動的興趣，實踐更健康的
生活模式；

2.	 推動及反映民意，以促使政府增設更多
完善的體育設施，供各類型運動使用；

3.	 調解或仲裁體育總會或組織之間的爭議；

4.	 協調所有本地體育組織，從休閒運動以
至精英運動層面推廣運動，以實現「全
民運動」目標；

5.	 與從事推廣國際體育競技活動的全球性
或地區性組織合作；

6.	 提倡奧林匹克精神 ── 透過運動促進友
誼、團結及公平競爭；

7.	 負責籌備國際體育賽事及鼓勵更多香港
運動員參與其中；

8.	 選出及委派中國香港代表團人選，參加
各類綜合項目運動會，包括奧林匹克運
動會、亞洲運動會及東亞青年運動會等；
及

9.	 作出其他有助於達到上述目標的行動。
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Board of Officers, Patrons and Honorary Officers
董事局、贊助人及名譽委員

PRESIDENT 會長

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK, GBM, GBS, JP
霍震霆先生 大紫荊勳賢，GBS, JP

HONORARY SECRETARY GENERAL  
義務秘書長

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG, PDSM
楊祖賜先生 PDSM

HONORARY TREASURER 義務司庫 

Mr. Derrick L. W. WONG, FCCA, CPA (practising)
黃良威先生 FCCA, CPA (practising)

OFFICER (ATHLETES COMMITTEE 
REPRESENTATIVE) 
委員（運動員委員會代表） 

Mr. WONG Kam Po, SBS
黃金寶先生 SBS

HONORARY DEPUTY SECRETARY GENERAL  
義務副秘書長 

Mr. WONG Po Kee, MH
黃寶基先生 MH

Ms. Fay K. F. HO
何劍暉女士

Mr. Philip K. Y. MOK
莫君逸先生

VICE-PRESIDENT 副會長

Dr. Karl C. KWOK, BBS
郭志樑博士 BBS

Mr. Tony K. L. YUE, BBS, JP
余國樑先生 BBS, JP

Dr. T. Brian STEVENSON, GBS, JP
施文信博士 GBS, JP

Prof. Herman S. M. HU, GBS, JP
胡曉明教授 GBS, JP

Mr. TONG Wai Lun, BBS, JP
湯偉倫先生 BBS, JP

The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK, JP
霍啟剛議員 JP

Dr. David T. Y. MONG
蒙德揚博士 

Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG, BBS, JP
王敏超先生 BBS, JP

Board of Officers
董事局
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Patrons and Honorary Officers
贊助人及名譽委員

PATRON 

The Hon. John K. C. LEE, GBM, SBS, PDSM, PMSM
Chief Executive, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, 
People's Republic of China

VICE-PATRON

The Hon. Kevin Y. H. YEUNG, GBS, JP 
Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism, HKSAR Government, 
People's Republic of China 

HONORARY VICE-PRESIDENT

Mr. YUE Yun Hing, BBS, MH
Dr. TONG Yun Kai, SBS
Mr. Victor C. F. HUI, GBS, JP
Mr. PUI Kwan Kay, SBS 
Ms. Vivien C. C. LAU, SBS, JP

HONORARY ADVISOR

Mr. PANG Chung, SBS
Prof. LEUNG Mee Lee, Ed.D, MH

HONORARY MEDICAL ADVISOR

Dr. Julian W. CHANG, BBS 
Dr. Bryan S. F. LAU (since 9 July 2024)
Dr. TSUI Wo Pong (since 9 July 2024)

HONORARY LEGAL ADVISOR

Mr. Peter BROWN
Mr. Nick H. F. CHAN, BBS, MH, JP (since 9 July 2024)

贊助人 

中華人民共和國香港特別行政區
行政長官
李家超先生 大紫荊勳賢，SBS, PDSM, PMSM

副贊助人 

中華人民共和國香港特別行政區政府
文化體育及旅遊局局長
楊潤雄先生 GBS, JP

名譽副會長 

余潤興先生 BBS, MH
湯恩佳博士 SBS 
許晉奎先生 GBS, JP 
貝鈞奇先生 SBS
劉掌珠女士 SBS, JP

名譽顧問 

彭冲先生 SBS
梁美莉教授 Ed.D, MH

名譽醫學顧問 

張維醫生 BBS
劉少峯醫生（自 2024 年 7 月 9 日起）
徐和邦醫生（自 2024 年 7 月 9 日起）

名譽法律顧問 

包安嵐先生
陳曉峰先生 BBS, MH, JP（自 2024年 7月 9日起）
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Management Structure
管理架構

Board of Officers 
董事局

Committees*
委員會 *

Promotion of      
Olympic Movement

推廣奧林匹克運動

Sports  
Development

體育發展

Corporate Affairs 
機構事務

Finance & 
Investment 
財務及投資

International 
Multi-sports  

Games 
國際綜合項目 

運動會

Management  
Company of Olympic 

House Limited
奧運大樓管理有限公司

SF&OC Sports Legacy 
Company Limited

港協暨奧委會奧夢成真 
有限公司

Hong Kong Olympic  
Fan Club Limited
香港奧林匹克之友 

有限公司

Management of 
Olympic House
奧運大樓管理

Membership 
Affairs

會員事務

Organization of 
Major Events
籌備大型活動

Hong Kong 
Olympic Academy 
香港奧林匹克學院

Administration & 
Personnel 

行政及人事

Athletes Career & 
Education 

運動員就業及教育

Audit
審計

Athletes Affairs
運動員事務

Affiliated Companies*
關聯公司 *

*	 The lists of committees and affiliated companies under the Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China are in 
Annex 1.

*	 中國香港體育協會暨奧林匹克委員會轄下委員會及關聯公司的名單可參考附錄一。
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Organization Structure
組織架構

Board of Officers 
董事局

Chief Executive 
行政總裁

Members of Committees 
委員會委員

Corporate 
Governance 

Division
機構管治部

Secretariat 
秘書處

Hong Kong 
Athletes Career 

& Education 
Department

香港運動員就業及 
教育部

Marketing 
Communications 

& Public Relations 
Division 

市場傳訊及 
公共關係部

Management 
Company of 

Olympic House 
Limited 

奧運大樓管理 
有限公司

NSAs Corporate 
Governance

體育總會 
機構管治

Corporate 
Services

會務

Career & 
Education  
Supprt for 
Athletes

運動員就業及 
教育

Management of 
Olympic House
奧運大樓管理

Publicity & 
Marketing 
Support for 
Games and 

Events 
運動會及活動的 
宣傳和市場策劃

SF&OC Sports 
Legacy  

Company  
Limited

港協暨奧委會 
奧夢成真 
有限公司

Olympism 
Education 

Programme 
奧林匹克主義 

教育計劃

International 
Multi-sports 

Games 
Participation
參與國際綜合 
項目運動會

Complaint 
Handling
處理投訴

Membership 
Eligibility & 

Support
會員資格審核及 

支援
Media & Public 

Relations
傳媒及公共關係

Organization of  
Major Events
籌辦大型活動

Patrons and Honorary Officers
贊助人及名譽委員

Hong Kong 
Olympic Fan  
Club Limited
香港奧林匹克 
之友有限公司



CORPORATE 
INVOLVEMENT
機構事務



CORPORATE INVOLVEMENT
機構事務

13ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024
2023-2024 周年報告

Representation in Local and Overseas Sports  
Committees

參與香港及海外體育界委員會

Membership Affairs and Support
會員事務及支援

The Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, 
China (SF&OC) actively participates in various committees* 
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative 
Region (HKSAR) and the Hong Kong Sports Institute for local 
sports development in facilities, coaching, athlete training 
and sports events. As a member of the International Olympic 
Committee (IOC), SF&OC also participates in a number of 
affiliated organizations to promote Hong Kong sports in 
overseas competitions and to bring Olympic Movement insights 
to the local sports community.

* The details of SF&OC's representation in local and overseas sports 
committees are listed in Annex 2.

Membership Affairs 

At the Annual General Meeting on 19 December 2023, SF&OC 
conferred "Observer" status to the Dodgeball Association of 
Hong Kong, China Limited and the Hapkido Hong Kong, China 
Limited with effect from 20 December 2023. As of 31 March 2024, 
SF&OC consisted of three "Individual Ordinary Members", 36 
"Association Ordinary Members", 18 "Associate Members" and 
31 "Observers"*.

* The SF&OC's Membership as at 31 March 2024 is listed in Annex 3. 

Guidelines on Handling the Playing of the National 
Anthem and Raising of the Regional Flag 

On 30 May 2023, SF&OC held a briefing session to explain the 
enhanced "Guidelines on Handling the Playing of the National 
Anthem and Raising of the Regional Flag for Hong Kong 
Athletes and Teams Engaging in International Sports Events" 
for the office bearers and staff of Member Associations.  The 
briefing session was conducted in a hybrid of physical and 
virtual formats, and attended by more than 230 representatives 
from Member Associations.

中國香港體育協會暨奧林匹克委員會（港協
暨奧委會）積極參與多個香港特別行政區
政府及香港體育學院設立的專責委員會 *，
共同在體育設施、教練培訓、運動員訓練及
體育活動多方面推動本地體育發展。此外，
作為國際奧林匹克委員會的成員，本會亦參
加多個相關組織，在海外比賽中推廣香港的
體育項目，並將奧林匹克運動的新視野帶給
香港體壇。

* 港協暨奧委會參與香港及海外體育界委員會之詳
情可參閱附錄二。

會員事務 

港協暨奧委會於 2023 年 12 月 19 日舉行的
周年大會授予中國香港閃避球總會有限公司
和中國香港合氣道總會有限公司「觀察會
員」資格，由 2023 年 12 月 20 日起生效。
截至 2024 年 3 月 31 日，本會共有三個「正
式個人會員」、36 個「正式屬會會員」、
18 個「準會員」及 31 個「觀察會員」*。

* 截至 2024 年 3 月 31 日的港協暨奧委會會員名單
可參閱附錄三。

播放國歌和升掛區旗的指引 

本會於 2023 年 5 月 30 日為轄下會員的委
員及工作人員舉行簡報會，說明經修訂的 

《香港運動員及隊伍參與國際體育賽事期間
處理播放國歌和升掛區旗的指引》。簡報會
以實體會議及線上形式同步舉行，共有超過
230 名人員參與。
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SF&OC Incentive Awards &  
Junior Incentive Awards

In recognition of the contribution to sports development, SF&OC 
presents cash incentives to its Member Associations each year.

In 2023, a total sum of HK$3,601,222, including HK$2,347,492 
for Incentive Awards and HK$1,253,730 for Junior Incentive 
Awards, was granted to 51 Member Associations*.

* The details of the awarded Member Associations are listed in Annex 4. 

Corporate Governance Division 

With the aim of examining and enhancing the corporate 
governance level and operational transparency of the Member 
Associations under SF&OC, the Corporate Governance Division 
(CG Division) completed the Corporate Governance Review of 
77 Member Associations. Thereafter, the Corporate Governance 
Review Report was compiled after thorough analysis of 
collected data and feedback, and submitted to the Government.

To raise the awareness of Member Associations on the 
prevention of bribery as one of the core elements under 
corporate governance, a seminar, "ICAC Seminar - Governance 
of NSAs/SOs for Board Directors", was held on 21 August 2023.  
The seminar received enthusiastic support and elicited robust 
responses from the participating Member Associations.

In December 2023, a Complaint Handling Team (CH Team) 
was established and assumed responsibility for handling 
of complaints against Member Associations.  In addition to 
complaint handling, CH Team has also proactively dealt with 
governance issues of sensitive nature and/or attracting public 
interest.  By the end of March 2024, CH Team has handled 22 
complaint cases.

CG Division has devised a Code of Governance (Code) and 
related guidelines and procedures for elevating the corporate 
governance standards of Member Associations.  Following 
the completion of the draft Code, feedback was solicited 
and integrated from the Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau, 
Independent Commission Against Corruption, Dr. Davy WU, 
Senior Lecturer of the Department of Accountancy, Economics 
and Finance, and Associate Director of the Centre for Corporate 
Governance and Financial Policy of the Hong Kong Baptist 
University, as well as Member Associations. The Code, along 
with comprehensive guidelines and procedures, will be formally 
promulgated after submission to the Government, setting new 
benchmarks for enhancing corporate governance, fostering 
public trust and promoting sports development in Hong Kong.

港協暨奧委會獎勵計劃及 
青少年獎勵計劃
本會每年均從儲備中撥出獎金予體育總會，
以表揚他們在體育發展上的貢獻。

2023 年度之獎勵計劃及青少年獎勵計劃總
獎金為港幣 3,601,222 元，其中獎勵計劃獎
金總數為港幣 2,347,492 元，青少年獎勵計
劃獎金總數為港幣 1,253,730 元，分別頒發
予 51 個體育總會 *。

* 獲得獎金的體育總會名單可參閱附錄四。
 

機構管治部 
機構管治部負責檢視港協暨奧委會轄下體育
總會的機構管治水平和運作透明度，已完
成 77 個屬會的機構管治檢討工作。隨後經
過深入分析數據及反饋，機構管治部編制了

《機構管治檢討報告》並交予政府。

防止賄賂是機構管治的重要一環，為提高體育
總會的認識，機構管治部於2023年8月21日
舉辦了一場「廉政公署 ─ 體育總會／機構
董事的誠信管治」講座，獲體育總會踴躍
參與。

在 2023 年 12 月，機構管治部成立處理投
訴小組，正式接手處理有關體育總會的投
訴。小組除了處理投訴外，同時積極處理敏
感和／或引起公眾關注的管治相關事宜。截
至 2024 年 3 月底，小組已處理 22 宗投訴
個案。

為進一步提升體育總會的機構管治水平，機
構管治部制定《機構管治守則》及相關指引
和程序。在完成編撰守則初稿後，機構管治
部徵詢並整合了文化體育及旅遊局、廉政公
署、香港浸會大學會計、經濟及金融學系高
級講師暨公司管治與金融政策研究中心副總
監胡家慈博士，以及各屬會的意見。《機構
管治守則》及相關指引和程序呈交政府後會
正式公布，為提升機構管治、促進公眾信任
和推動香港體育發展建立新的基準。
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Sports Development and Major Local Events
體育發展及本地大型活動

66th Festival of Sport
第 66 屆體育節
The theme of the 66th Festival of Sport (FOS) was "Joint 
Exercising with Joy and Excitement". Over 50 FOS events were 
co-organized by NSAs from April to June 2023 to encourage 
the public to stay active in sports and promote "Sport for All". 
More than 124 000 members of the public took part in various 
activities of the 66th FOS. 

Enhanced Events 

There were five enhanced events in the 66th FOS, namely the 
Hong Kong Softball Carnival, the 5th Motorsport Festival, 
the Kids Handball Promotion Fun Day, the Summer Indoor 
Rowing Festival and the Family Sports Games 2023. The events 
comprised various sports trials and demonstrations to enhance 
the sporting atmosphere.

Visit to Local Service Centre by Ambassadors 

On 30 June 2023, FOS Ambassadors Ms. Lisa CHENG (Sport 
Climbing and Bodybuilding) and Ms. Cythia LOK (Motorsport) 
visited "TungPo", a holistic centre for youth development under 
the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, and performed stretching 
exercises with students and parents, encouraging them to stay 
healthy through simple exercises.

Officiating guests and FOS Ambassadors, CHAN Wai Ho (Football, 
far left), Lisa CHENG (Sport Climbing and Bodybuilding, second 
from right) and Cythia LOK (Motorsport, first from right) at the 
Opening Ceremony cum Carnival on 8 April 2023.

主禮嘉賓和體育節大使陳偉豪（足球；左一）、鄭麗莎（運動攀登
及健美；右二）和駱倩華（賽車 ；右一）於 2023 年 4 月 8 日出席
開幕典禮暨嘉年華。

第 66 屆體育節以「活力共創，精彩起航」
為主題。各體育總會於 2023 年 4 月至 6 月
期間，合辦超過 50 項體育節活動，鼓勵市
民積極參加，並宣揚「全民運動」。今屆體
育節共吸引超過 124 000 名市民參與。 

重點活動 

今屆體育節的五個重點活動包括「香港壘球
嘉年華」、「第五屆香港賽車運動節」、「幼
兒手球推廣同樂日」、「室內賽艇夏日祭」
及「親子運動市集 2023」，活動均設有多
個運動體驗攤位及運動示範，讓市民一同投
入運動熱潮。

體育大使到訪本地社區服務中心 

體育節大使鄭麗莎（運動攀登及健美）和
駱倩華（賽車）於 2023 年 6 月 30 日到訪
東華三院「東蒲」青少年全人成長中心，與
學生及家長進行舒展運動，鼓勵他們透過簡
單的運動保持健康。

Sports trial session at the 66th FOS Opening Ceremony cum 
Carnival.

第 66 屆體育節開幕典禮暨嘉年華的運動體驗環節。
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FOS offers a wide range of sports activities and 
competitions for participants of different age groups.

體育節設有多元化的體育活動及比賽，不同年齡人士亦
可參與。

FOS Ambassadors and students performing stretching exercises.

體育節大使和學生進行舒展運動。
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Cathay 2022 Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards
國泰 2022 年度香港傑出運動員選舉
SF&OC held the Awards Presentation Ceremony of the Cathay 
2022 Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards (the Awards) at the 
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre on 18 April 2023.

This year, SF&OC received 96 nominations from 46 Member 
Associations for the Awards. Following voting by judging panels, 
the media and the public, all 16 winners across four award 
categories were selected. Men's foilist CHEUNG Ka Long (Fencing), 
who won a gold at the World Cup, and Siobhan HAUGHEY 
(Swimming), who snapped up one gold and one silver at 
the 2022 FINA World Swimming Championships (25m), were 
dominant as both were awarded "Best of the Best Hong Kong 
Sports Stars Award for Men/Women" respectively once again.

港協暨奧委會於 2023 年 4 月 18 日在香港
會議展覽中心舉行「國泰 2022 年度香港傑
出運動員選舉」頒獎典禮。

今屆選舉港協暨奧委會收到 46 個體育總會
提交合共 96 項提名，經評審團、傳媒及公
眾踴躍投票後，四個組別合共 16 個獎項得
主全數誕生。當中，男子花劍世界盃冠軍
張家朗（劍擊）及在世界短池游泳錦標賽奪
得一金一銀的何詩蓓（游泳）蟬聯「國泰星
中之星香港傑出男／女運動員」最高殊榮。
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Awardee List 得獎者名單

Sports Association 體育總會

Billiard Sports Council of Hong Kong China Limited 
中國香港桌球總會有限公司

Fencing Association of Hong Kong, China 
中國香港劍擊總會

Sports Association for the Physically Disabled of Hong Kong, China 
- Badminton 中國香港傷殘人士體育協會 ─ 羽毛球

The Hong Kong, China Tennis Association Limited 
中國香港網球總會有限公司

Hong Kong, China Wushu Union Limited 
中國香港武術聯會有限公司

Sports Association 體育總會

Billiard Sports Council of Hong Kong China Limited 
中國香港桌球總會有限公司

Fencing Association of Hong Kong, China 
中國香港劍擊總會

The Karatedo Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited 
中國香港空手道總會有限公司

Sports Association for the Physically Disabled of Hong Kong, China - Boccia 
中國香港傷殘人士體育協會 ─ 硬地滾球

Hong Kong China Swimming Association 
中國香港游泳總會

Sports Association 體育總會

Fencing Association of Hong Kong, China 
中國香港劍擊總會

Sports Association 體育總會

Hong Kong China Swimming Association 
中國香港游泳總會

Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards for Men 香港傑出男運動員

Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards for Women 香港傑出女運動員

Cathay Best of the Best Hong Kong Sports Stars Award for Men 國泰星中之星香港傑出男運動員大獎

Cathay Best of the Best Hong Kong Sports Stars Award for Women 國泰星中之星香港傑出女運動員大獎

Athlete 運動員

CHEUNG Ka Wai 
張家瑋

CHEUNG Ka Long 
張家朗

CHU Man Kai 
朱文佳

Coleman WONG Chak Lam 
黃澤林

HO Ching Hin 
何証騫

Athlete 運動員

NG On Yee 
吳安儀

Vivian KONG Man Wai 
江旻憓

Grace LAU Mo Sheung 
劉慕裳

HO Yuen Kei 
何宛淇

Siobhan Bernadette HAUGHEY 
何詩蓓

Athlete 運動員

CHEUNG Ka Long 
張家朗

Athlete 運動員

Siobhan Bernadette HAUGHEY 
何詩蓓
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Sports Association 體育總會

Fencing Association of Hong Kong, China 
中國香港劍擊總會

Hong Kong, China Sports Association for Persons with Intellectual 
Disability - Table Tennis 
中國香港智障人士體育協會 ─ 乒乓球

Squash Association of Hong Kong, China 
中國香港壁球總會

Sports Association 體育總會

Hong Kong, China Rugby 
中國香港欖球總會

Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards for Team Event 香港最佳運動組合

Hong Kong Sports Stars Award for Team Only Sport 香港最佳運動隊伍

Team 運動組合

Hong Kong Women's Epee Team 
Vivian KONG Man Wai / CHAN Wai Ling / 
Kaylin HSIEH Sin Yan / Coco LIN Yik Hei / 
CHU Ka Mong

香港女子重劍代表隊
江旻憓／陳渭泠／佘繕妡／連翊希／朱嘉望

Hong Kong Table Tennis Team - 
Women's Doubles (WD22)  
NG Mui Wui / WONG Ting Ting

香港乒乓球代表隊 ─ 女子雙打 (WD22)
吳玫薈／王婷莛

Hong Kong Squash Women's Team 
HO Tze Lok / CHAN Sin Yuk / LEE Ka Yi / 
TONG Tsz Wing

香港女子壁球隊 
何子樂／陳善鈺／李嘉兒／湯芷穎

Team 運動隊伍

Hong Kong Men's Rugby Sevens Team 

香港男子七人欖球代表隊
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Cathay 2023 Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards
國泰 2023 年度香港傑出運動員選舉
SF&OC received 118 nominations from 54 Member Associations 
for the Cathay 2023 Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards (the Awards). 
The four award categories were the Hong Kong Sports Stars 
Awards for Men, Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards for Women, 
Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards for Sports Combination, and 
Hong Kong Sports Stars Award for Team Only Sport. Five 
athletes were awarded in each category of the Hong Kong 
Sports Stars Awards for Men and Hong Kong Sports Stars 
Awards for Women. The awardees with the highest votes were 
titled the Best of the Best Hong Kong Sports Stars Award for 
Men/Women respectively. There were three winning groups for 
the Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards for Sports Combination, 
while one winner was selected for the Hong Kong Sports Stars 
Award for Team Only Sport.

An organizing committee and a judging panel were appointed 
to review the nominations and select the awardees respectively. 
Apart from the judges, local sports editors/reporters, as well as the 
general public also voted for all categories of the Awards.

Events and Promotions 

The Event Announcement Press Conference was held at the 
Olympic House on 11 December 2023 to announce the details 
of the Awards to the press and representatives of NSAs, while 
the Public Voting Press Conference was held at Olympian City 
on 17 February 2024 to announce the list of nominees. Over a 
hundred nominated athletes and teams were present at the 
press conference to encourage the public to vote actively.

SF&OC also staged an exhibition on the Awards and promoted 
public voting from 16 to 19 February 2024 at Olympian City to 
enhance publicity. Multiple Hong Kong team representatives 
of urban sports, including HO Pui Ying, KWAN Hoi Pui and  
NG Yan Tung (3x3 Basketball), B-girl Lady Banan WONG Chiu Wai 
(Breaking), YU Long (Skateboarding) and WONG Cheuk Nam 
(Sport Climbing) were invited to participate in the promotion 
video.

During the public voting period, an online promotion 
campaign featuring the nominees was carried out. Photo cards 
introducing the nominees, promotion videos and "Number 
facts about HKSSA" were posted on SF&OC's Facebook and 
Instagram pages. In addition, a number of media interviews 
were arranged, enabling members of the public to know more 
about the nominees.

「國泰 2023 年度香港傑出運動員選舉」共
收到 54 個體育總會提交 118 個提名。選舉
設有四個組別的獎項，包括「香港傑出男運
動員」、「香港傑出女運動員」、「香港最
佳運動組合」及「香港最佳運動隊伍」。其
中「香港傑出男運動員」及「香港傑出女運
動員」分別有最多五位運動員獲獎，他們之
中得票最高的運動員將獲頒「國泰星中之星
香港傑出男／女運動員」殊榮。至於「香港
最佳運動組合」設有三個得獎組合，「香港
最佳運動隊伍」則會有一隊獲獎。

籌備委員會及評審團分別負責檢視提名名單
及進行評選，此外，本地體育版編輯／記者
以及大眾市民均可投票選出四個獎項組別的
運動員或隊伍。

活動及宣傳 

是次選舉的記者招待會於 2023 年 12 月11日
在奧運大樓舉行，向傳媒及體育總會代表
公布選舉詳情。公眾投票記者招待會則於
2024 年 2 月 17 日在奧海城舉行，公布候選
名單，並邀請了逾百位候選運動員及隊伍出
席，呼籲市民積極投票。

為加強宣傳，本會於 2024 年 2 月16 至 19日
在奧海城舉辦關於香港傑出運動員選舉的展覽
及投票活動。今屆選舉亦邀請了多項城市運動
的港隊代表拍攝宣傳片，包括何佩盈、關海珮
和吳欣潼（三人籃球）、B-girl Lady Banan
黃昭惠（霹靂舞）、于朗（滑板）和黃卓楠

（運動攀登）。

在公眾投票期間，本會展開一連串網上宣傳
活動，包括在 Facebook 及 Instagram 專頁
發布介紹候選運動員的相卡和短片，以及有
關選舉的「數字解碼」帖文，並透過安排傳
媒訪問，讓公眾加深認識候選運動員。
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SF&OC announces the details of the Cathay 2023 Hong Kong Sports Stars 
Awards at the Olympic House on 11 December 2023.

本會於 2023 年 12 月 11 日在奧運大樓公布「國泰 2023 年度香港傑出運動員選
舉」詳情。

SF&OC stages an exhibition on the Awards and promotes public 
voting from 16 to 19 February 2024 at Olympian City to enhance 
publicity.

本會於 2024 年 2 月 16 至 19 日在奧海城舉辦關於香港傑出運動員
選舉的展覽及投票活動，以加強宣傳。

Over  a  hundred nominated 
athletes and teams attend the 
Public Voting Press Conference on 
17 February 2024.

逾 百 位 候 選 運 動 員 及 隊 伍 出 席 於
2024 年 2 月 17 日舉行的公眾投票
記者招待會。
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Participation in Multi-Sports Games
參與國際綜合項目運動會

Ulaanbaatar 2023 East Asian Youth Games
烏蘭巴托 2023 東亞青年運動會
The East Asian Youth Games (EAYG), formerly known as the East 
Asian Games, is a quadrennial multi-sports games. The first EAYG  
was held in Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia, from 16 to 23 August 2023. 
Hong Kong, China sent a delegation of more than 200 members, 
including 140 athletes aged 15 to 18, to participate in nine 
sports including Athletics, Basketball, Taekwondo, etc.

Selection 

The Selection Committee of the Hong Kong, China Delegation to 
the Ulaanbaatar 2023 EAYG was formed to vet the nominations 
from NSAs or organizations.

Ceremonies and Activities 

The Flag Presentation Ceremony was held on 25 July 2023 at the 
Kowloon Park Sports Centre. Mr. CHAN Kwok Ki, Acting Chief 
Executive of HKSAR, officiated at the ceremony and presented 
the regional flag to the Hong Kong, China Delegation.

The Opening Ceremony of the Games was held at the Central 
Stadium in Ulaanbaatar on 17 August 2023, with CHAN Cheuk Yin 
(Basketball) and LAU Wai Sum (Judo) as the flag bearers of the 
Hong Kong, China Delegation.

東亞青年運動會前身為東亞運動會，是每
四年舉辦一次的綜合運動會。首屆東亞青年
運動會於 2023 年 8 月 16 至 23 日在蒙古
烏蘭巴托舉行，中國香港派出超過 200 人
的代表團，當中包括 140 名 15 至 18 歲的
運動員，參與九個項目，包括田徑、籃球、
跆拳道等。

遴選 

烏蘭巴托 2023 東亞青年運動會中國香港代
表團的遴選委員會負責審批由相關體育總會
或機構所遞交的提名。

儀式及活動 

授旗典禮於 2023 年 7 月 25 日在九龍公園
體育館舉行，由香港特別行政區署理行政長
官陳國基主禮，將區旗授予中國香港代表團。

運動會開幕禮於 2023年8月17日在烏蘭巴托
的「中央運動場」舉行，中國香港代表團由
陳卓賢（籃球）和劉蕙芯（柔道）擔任持旗手。

Selection Committee 遴選委員會

Chairperson 主席

Vice-Chairperson 副主席

Member 成員

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG 楊祖賜先生

Mr. TONG Wai Lun 湯偉倫先生

Mr. KWAN Kee 關祺先生
Mr. Eddy L. S. CHEN 陳龍盛先生
Mr. PUI Kwan Kay 貝鈞奇先生
Mr. Tony K. L. YUE 余國樑先生
Mr. Wilfred S. K. NG 吳守基先生
Mr. TANG King Shing 鄧竟成先生
The Hon. Joephy W. Y. CHAN 陳穎欣議員
Mr. Tony Y. K. CHOI 蔡玉坤先生
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Athletes' Performance 

The Hong Kong, China Delegation won a total of 22 medals -  
2 golds, 6 silvers and 14 bronzes at the Games. LI Tsz To 
(Athletics) earned two golds in the Women's 100m and 200m.

運動員成績
中國香港代表團取得 2 金 6 銀 14 銅共 22 面
獎牌，其中李紫桃（田徑）分別在女子 100 米
及 200 米奪得金牌。

Flag Presentation Ceremony for the Hong Kong, China 
Delegation to the Ulaanbaatar 2023 East Asian Youth Games.

烏蘭巴托 2023 東亞青年運動會中國香港代表團授旗典禮。

The Hong Kong, China Delegation 
attending the Opening Ceremony.

中國香港代表團出席開幕禮。

1

2
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4

5

6

7

Athletics 田徑

Badminton 羽毛球

Basketball 籃球

3 x 3 Basketball 三人籃球

Football 足球

Taekwondo 跆拳道

Volleyball 排球

Total 總數

No. of Medals 獎牌數目
Sports 運動項目

Gold 金

2

2

Bronze 銅

4

1

1

1

6

1

14

Silver 銀

3

1

1

1

6

Total 總數

9

1

1

1

2

7

1
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LI Tsz To (Athletics) earns two golds in the 
Women's 100m and 200m.

李紫桃（田徑）分別在女子 100 米及 200 米
奪得金牌。

The Closing Ceremony on 23 August 2023.

閉幕禮於 2023 年 8 月 23 日舉行。
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Hangzhou 19th Asian Games
杭州第 19 屆亞運會
The 19th Asian Games was held in Hangzhou from 23 September 
to 8 October 2023. Hong Kong, China sent about 660 athletes 
to participate in the Games, with the delegation size totalling 
about 940 people, the biggest-ever in history.

Selection and Preparation 

Following the selection criteria, the Selection Committee 
confirmed that Hong Kong, China would send a delegation 
nominated by 41 NSAs, and submitted the list of athletes to the 
Hangzhou Asian Games Organising Committee on 15 July 2023.

A team officials' meeting and briefings on the latest 
information of the Games, anti-doping and security were held 
on 24 August 2023 for the team officials and athletes.

第19屆亞運會於2023年9月23日至10月8日
在杭州舉行，中國香港派出約660名運動員
參加，整個代表團約940人，人數是歷年
之冠。

遴選及準備工作 

遴選委員會按遴選準則確認中國香港派出由
41 個體育總會提名的代表團參加杭州亞運，
並於 2023 年 7 月 15 日向杭州第 19 屆亞運
會組委會遞交運動員名單。

本會在 2023 年 8 月 24 日舉行領隊會議和
簡介會，向領隊及運動員發放有關運動會安
排、運動禁藥管制及保安事宜的最新資訊。

Selection Committee 遴選委員會

Chairperson 主席

Vice-Chairperson 副主席

Member 成員

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG 楊祖賜先生

Mr. WONG Po Kee 黃寶基先生

Dr. Karl C. KWOK 郭志樑博士
Mr. Tony K. L. YUE 余國樑先生
Mr. TONG Wai Lun 湯偉倫先生
Mr. Wilson K. T. YEUNG 楊錦達先生
Mr. KWAN Kee 關祺先生
Mr. LEUNG Hung Tak 梁鴻德先生
Mr. Billy DILLON　Billy DILLON 先生
Mr. NG Kong Wan 吳江泓先生
Miss Nicole K. P. WONG 黃嘉寶小姐
Mr. Eddy L. S. CHEN 陳龍盛先生
Mr. George S. C. KWAN 關新全先生
Mr. TANG King Shing 鄧竟成先生
Prof. Patrick S. H. YUNG 容樹恒教授
The Hon. Joephy W. Y. CHAN 陳穎欣議員
Mr. Tony Y. K. CHOI 蔡玉坤先生
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Ceremonies and Activities 

The Flag Presentation Ceremony was held on 25 July 2023 at the 
Kowloon Park Sports Centre.  Mr. CHAN Kwok Ki, Acting Chief 
Executive of HKSAR, officiated at the ceremony and presented 
the regional flag to the Hong Kong, China Delegation.

The Team Welcome Ceremony for delegations was held at the 
Athletes' Village in Hangzhou on 22 September 2023, with 
about 50 delegation members participated.

The Opening Ceremony was held at the Hangzhou Sports 
Park Stadium on 23 September 2023. Around 180 delegation 
members were led by the flag bearers, YIU Kam Shing (Rugby) 
and Juanita MOK (Wushu). WONG Hok Him (Chinese Chess) was 
the flag bearer of the delegation at the Closing Ceremony held 
on 8 October 2023.

A Welcome Home Reception for the Hong Kong, China 
Delegation was jointly organized by the HKSAR Government and 
SF&OC on 14 October 2023 at the Central Government Offices. 
Certificates were presented to the medallists as commendation 
for their outstanding achievements at the Games.

儀式及活動 

授旗典禮於 2023 年 7 月 25 日在九龍公園
體育館舉行，由香港特別行政區署理行政長
官陳國基主禮，將區旗授予中國香港代表團。

約 50 名代表團成員於 2023 年 9 月 22 日在
杭州亞運選手村出席代表團歡迎儀式。

杭州亞運的開幕儀式於 2023 年 9 月 23 日
在杭州奧體中心體育場舉行，中國香港代表
團約 180 名成員出席，由姚錦成（七人欖
球）和莫宛螢（武術）擔任持旗手。閉幕儀
式則於 2023 年 10 月 8 日舉行，由黃學謙 

（中國象棋）擔任持旗手。

特區政府和本會於 2023 年 10 月 14 日在
政府總部舉行中國香港代表團返港歡迎儀
式，慶祝代表團凱旋。各獎牌運動員獲頒發
嘉許狀，以表揚他們於亞運會的傑出表現。

Delegation members at the Team Welcome Ceremony at the 
Athletes' Village.

代表團成員出席在選手村舉行的代表團歡迎儀式。

Wushu athlete Juanita MOK (left) and rugby athlete 
YIU Kam Shing (right) are the flag bearers of the 
delegation at the Opening Ceremony.

武術運動員莫宛螢（左）和七人欖球運動員姚錦成（右）
擔任開幕禮的港隊持旗手。

HKSAR Government and SF&OC hold a Welcome Home Reception to congratulate the Hong Kong, China Delegation for their 
outstanding achievements at the Hangzhou Asian Games.

特區政府和本會舉行中國香港代表團返港歡迎儀式，慶祝代表團於杭州亞運凱旋。
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Athletes' Performance 

Hong Kong, China Delegation brought home a record high of 
53 medals, including 8 golds, 16 silvers, 29 bronzes and ranked 
12th in the medal standings for the Games.

運動員成績
中國香港代表團在杭州亞運奪得8金16銀
29銅共53面獎牌，在運動會獎牌榜排名
第12，同時刷新港隊在亞運會的獎牌數量
紀錄。
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4
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7

8

9

10
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13

14

15

16

17

18

Athletics 田徑

Bridge 橋牌

Chinese Chess 中國象棋

Cycling 單車

E-sports 電子競技

Equestrian 馬術

Fencing 劍擊

Golf 高爾夫球

Karate 空手道

Rowing 賽艇

Rugby Sevens 七人欖球

Sailing 帆船

Sailing (Windsurfing) 帆船（滑浪風帆）

Squash 壁球

Swimming 游泳

Table Tennis 乒乓球

Triathlon 三項鐵人

Wushu 武術

Total 總數

No. of Medals 獎牌數目
Sports 運動項目

Gold 金

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

8

Bronze 銅

1

1

1

2

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

4

3

1

1

1

29

Silver 銀

3

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

16

Total 總數

1

2

1

6

1

2

9

2

1

3

2

2

3

6

7

1

1

3

53

LAM San Tung (left) and WONG Wai Chun (right) of the Rowing 
Team win the first gold medal for Hong Kong at the Hangzhou 
Asian Games.

賽艇組合林新棟（左）和王瑋駿（右）在杭州亞運為香港奪得首面
金牌。

CHEUNG Ka Long earns a gold medal in Men's Foil Individual, 
which is also a historic gold medal earned by the Fencing Team 
of the Hong Kong, China Delegation at the Asian Games.

張家朗在男子個人花劍項目奪得金牌，是港隊歷史性首面亞運劍擊
金牌。
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The Men's Bridge Team wins a gold in Men's Team Final. This is 
the eighth gold medal bagged by Hong Kong at the Hangzhou 
Asian Games, equalizing the tally achieved at the previous Asian 
Games.

男子橋牌隊在團體決賽勇奪金牌，這是港隊在杭州亞運收穫的第八
面金牌，追平歷屆亞運金牌數目。

Siobhan HAUGHEY (centre) earns the historic gold medal for 
the Swimming Team of the Hong Kong, China Delegation at the 
Asian Games.

何詩蓓（中）為港隊奪得歷來首面亞運游泳金牌。

YANG Qianyu earns the historic gold medal in the Women's 
Road Race event of Asian Games for Hong Kong.

楊倩玉奪香港史上首面亞運女子公路賽金牌。

Long jump athlete YUE Nga Yan breaks Hong Kong record and 
brings home the first bronze medal in the field event of the 
Asian Games.

跳遠運動員俞雅欣以破香港紀錄奪得港隊歷來首面田項亞運銅牌。

The Men's Rugby Team defends their gold medal at the Asian 
Games.

男子七人欖球隊成功衛冕亞運金牌。

KHO Taichi wins the first-ever Asian Games gold medal for 
Hong Kong in Golf.

許龍一歷史性取得港隊於高爾夫球項目首面亞運金牌。
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Gangwon 2024 Winter Youth Olympic Games
江原道 2024 冬季青年奧運會
The 4th Winter Youth Olympic Games (WYOG) was held in 
Gangwon, Republic of Korea, from 19 January to 1 February 2024. 
This was the second time for SF&OC to send a delegation to the 
Games, with three young athletes participating in two events 
including Alpine Skiing (Giant Slalom and Slalom) and Short 
Track Speed Skating.

Selection and Preparation 

The Selection Committee was formed on 1 December 2023 to 
vet the nominations from NSAs or organizations. 

A delegation briefing was conducted on 8 January 2024 to 
provide the latest information of WYOG to all delegation members. 
A briefing by the Anti-Doping Organization of Hong Kong, China 
was also arranged at the same occasion.

江原道 2024 冬季青年奧運會（冬青奧）於
2024 年 1 月 19 日至 2 月 1 日在韓國江原道
舉行。這是本會第二次派出代表團參加冬
青奧，三名年輕運動員參加其中兩個體育項
目，包括高山滑雪（大迴轉及迴轉賽）及短
道速滑。

遴選及準備工作 

遴選委員會於 2023 年 12 月 1 日組成，負責
審批相關體育總會或機構所遞交的提名。

本會於2024年1月8日舉行簡介會，向代表團
成員提供有關冬青奧的最新資訊，亦邀請了
中國香港運動禁藥管制機構講解相關事項。

Selection Committee 遴選委員會

Chairperson 主席

Vice-Chairperson 副主席

Member 成員

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG 楊祖賜先生

Mr. WONG Po Kee 黃寶基先生

Mr. Samson F. H. SIU 蕭輝豪先生
Mr. LIN Hoi Kwong 連海光先生

Ceremonies and Activities 

The Flag Presentation Ceremony was held on 8 January 2024 at 
the Olympic House. Ms. Camay LEE, Assistant Director (Leisure 
Services) of the Leisure and Cultural Services Department, 
officiated the ceremony and presented the regional flag to the 
Hong Kong, China Delegation.

The Opening Ceremony of Gangwon 2024 WYOG was held on 
19 January 2024 at the Gangneung Oval. CHAN Sin Ying (Short 
Track Speed Skating) and Lucas WONG (Alpine Skiing) were the 
flag bearers of the Hong Kong, China Delegation.

Athletes' Performance 

For Alpine Skiing, Aerin KING and Lucas WONG successfully 
completed the Women's Slalom, the Men's Giant Slalom and 
Men's Slalom respectively. CHAN Sin Ying achieved a new personal 
best in the Women's 1000m of Short Track Speed Skating.

儀式及活動 

授旗禮於 2024 年 1 月 8 日在奧運大樓舉行，
由康文署助理署長（康樂事務）李嘉美主
禮，將區旗授予中國香港代表團。

江原道 2024 冬青奧的開幕儀式於 2024 年
1 月 19 日在江陵競速滑冰館舉行，由陳倩凝

（短道速滑）和王智顥（高山滑雪）擔任中國
香港代表團的持旗手。

運動員成績
在高山滑雪項目，金和霖順利完成女子迴轉
賽，王智顥亦順利完成男子大迴轉和迴轉
賽；陳倩凝則在短道速滑女子 1000 米賽事，
刷新個人最佳成績。
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The Hong Kong, China Delegation poses for a group photo at 
the Flag Presentation Ceremony.

中國香港代表團在授旗禮合照。

Lucas WONG competes in the Men's Giant Slalom.

王智顥參加男子大迴轉賽。

Short track speed skating athlete CHAN Sin Ying.

短道速滑運動員陳倩凝。

Short track speed skating athlete CHAN Sin Ying (right) and 
alpine skiing athlete Lucas WONG (left) are the flag bearers of 
the Hong Kong, China Delegation at the Opening Ceremony.

短道速滑運動員陳倩凝（右）和高山滑雪運動員王智顥（左）擔任
開幕禮的港隊持旗手。

Aerin KING successfully completes the Women's Slalom.

金和霖順利完成女子迴轉賽。

Mr. Timothy FOK (centre), President of SF&OC, visits the Athletes' 
Village in Gangneung.

本會會長霍震霆（中）到江陵選手村為運動員打氣。
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Olympic Movement in Action
推廣奧林匹克運動

2023 Olympic Day
2023 奧運日
SF&OC has been organizing annual Olympic Day events since 
1987 to commemorate the establishment of the International 
Olympic Committee (IOC) and promote the Olympic values and 
spirits. 2023 Olympic Day was held on 18 June 2023 at the West 
Kowloon Cultural District. In light of the Hangzhou Asian Games, 
a "Hangzhou Asian Games Fun Run" was also held to encourage 
the public to support Hong Kong athletes at the Games. The 
event, featuring both "Individual" and "Family Fun Run", 
received an enthusiastic response with about 3 000 participants.

With the support of 15 NSAs, a Sports Carnival was held on the 
same day, which was also an event of the "Happy Hong Kong" 
Campaign. Through various mini-games booths and sports 
demonstrations, members of the public learnt more about 
different sports, including skateboarding, newly added to 
the Olympics, basketball, practical shooting, dodge disc and 
air badminton. A "Hangzhou Asian Games Corner" was also 
presented at the carnival to promote the Games. Over 8 700 
participants celebrated the Olympic Day.

港協暨奧委會由 1987 年開始，每年舉辦
奧運日活動，慶祝國際奧委會的成立，並
宣揚奧林匹克精神和價值。2023 奧運日於
2023 年 6 月 18 日在西九文化區舉行，因
應杭州亞運，2023 奧運日特設「杭州亞運
會趣味跑」，鼓勵公眾支持香港運動員出戰
亞運。活動另設有「個人跑」及「親子輕鬆
跑」，吸引約 3 000 人參加。

本會得到 15 個體育總會支持，同場舉行體
育嘉年華，這亦是「開心香港」活動之一。
市民透過體育總會的攤位遊戲和體育示範認
識不同運動，包括奧運新增項目滑板、籃球、
實用射擊、躲避盤，以及戶外羽毛球。嘉年
華亦設有杭州亞運專區，向市民推廣亞運知
識。整個奧運日活動參與人數達 8 700 人。

2023 Olympic Day, featuring both "Individual" and 
"Family Fun Run", receives an enthusiastic response 
with about 3 000 participants.

2023 奧運日設有「個人跑」及「親子輕鬆跑」，吸引約
3 000 人參加。
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(From left) Athletes YIU Kam Shing (Rugby), HO Kwan Kit (Table 
Tennis), LEE Chun Ho (Karatedo), WU Siu Hong (Bowling), 
WONG Kai Lok (Athletics) and LO Ying Chiu (Athletics) share 
their sporting experiences.

（由左起）運動員姚錦成（欖球）、何鈞傑（乒乓球）、李振豪（空
手道）、胡兆康（保齡球）、黃啟樂（長跑）和羅映潮（長跑）與市
民分享做運動心得。

Programme
活動

Olympic Scholarships for Athletes – 
Paris 2024
(1 January 2022 to  
31 August 2024)

國際奧委會團結基金獎學金 
《巴黎 2024 奧運會》
（2022 年 1 月 1 日至 

2024 年 8 月 31 日）

Olympic Scholarships for Athletes – 
Milano Cortina 2026
(1 November 2023 to 
28 February 2026)

國際奧委會團結基金獎學金 
《米蘭科爾蒂納 2026 冬季奧運會》
（2023 年 11 月 1 日至 

2026 年 2 月 28 日）

Olympic Solidarity Team Support 
Grant 
(Year 2021-2024)

國際奧委會團結基金隊制資助金 
（2021 至 2024 年度）

11th International Athletes' Forum 
2023 
(1 to 2 October 2023)

第 11 屆國際運動員論壇 2023 
（2023 年 10 月 1 至 2 日）

Supporting Organization / Athlete / Coach
資助機構／運動員／教練

1. CHING Siu Nga (Athletics)
2. LEE Cheuk Yiu (Badminton)
3. CHEUNG Ka Long (Fencing)
4. DOO Hoi Kem (Table Tennis)
5. Oscar COGGINS (Triathlon)

1. 程小雅（田徑）
2. 李卓耀（羽毛球）
3. 張家朗（劍擊）
4. 杜凱琹（乒乓球）
5. 奧斯卡（三項鐵人）

LAM Ching Yan (Short Track Speed Skating)

林靜欣（短道速滑）

1. The Football Association of Hong Kong, 
China (Women's Team) 
中國香港足球總會（女子隊）

2. Volleyball Association of Hong Kong, 
China (Men's Team) 
中國香港排球總會（男子隊）

Hayley Victoria CHAN Hei Man (Member of 
the SF&OC Athletes Committee)
陳晞文（港協暨奧委會運動員委員會委員）

Subsidy Amount 
資助金額

US$1,500 per month for 
each awardee, i.e. a total 
of US$90,000 during the 
year

每名得獎運動員每月可獲
$1,500 美元，即本年度
的資助金額合共 $90,000
美元

US$1,500 per month, 
i.e. a total of US$18,000 
during the year

每月可獲 $1,500 美元，
即本年度的資助金額合共
$18,000 美元

US$50,000 for each 
awarding team

每隊得獎隊伍可獲
$50,000 美元

Funded by Olympic 
Solidarity

由國際奧委會團結基金 
資助
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Olympism Education Programme 2023-2024
2023-2024 年度奧林匹克主義教育計劃

"Hangzhou 19th Asian Games" Colouring and Drawing Competition 
& Roving Exhibition

「杭州第 19 屆亞運會」填色及繪畫比賽、流動展覽

The Olympism Education Programme (OEP) organized over 
260 educational activities at schools and community centres 
during the year, serving over 85 000 beneficiaries in total. OEP 
aims to promote Olympism to the public, increase awareness 
to the development of sports, and encourage participation in 
sports through talks, athlete sharing, sports demonstrations, 
exhibition panels, carnivals and parent-child workshops.

To promote the Hangzhou 19th Asian Games, a colouring 
and drawing competition was organized with over 8 000 
secondary and primary students participating. Also, a territory-
wide roving exhibition was held at 56 public libraries, sports 
centres, community halls and tertiary institutions to raise public 
awareness of the Games and encourage the public to support 
Hong Kong athletes.

「奧林匹克主義教育計劃」在本年度於學校
及社區中心舉行超過 260 場教學活動，總
受惠人數超過 85 000 人。計劃旨在透過不
同活動，包括講座、運動員分享、運動示範、
展板、嘉年華及親子工作坊等，向參加者宣
揚奧林匹克主義，並加深他們對體育發展的
認識，普及體育運動。

為宣傳杭州第 19 屆亞運會，本會舉辦填色
及繪畫比賽，吸引超過 8 000 名中小學生參
加。此外，本會在全港多區舉行流動展覽，
涵蓋 56 間公共圖書館、體育館、社區中心
及大專院校，以加深市民對亞運會的認識，
鼓勵公眾支持香港運動員。

An award-winning student takes photos with her artwork 
at the exhibition.

得獎同學在作品展與其畫作合照。

Students learn about Olympism and Olympic Games 
through booth games.

學生透過攤位遊戲認識奧林匹克主義和奧運會。

The roving exhibition introduces the Hangzhou Asian 
Games and the participation of the Hong Kong, China 
Delegation.

流動展覽展示有關杭州亞運的資訊，以及中國香港代表團參
加亞運的歷程。

Retired Karatedo athlete CHAN Hau Yan introduces the 
basic movements of karatedo to the participants.

退役空手道運動員陳巧恩向同學教授空手道的基本動作。
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2023 Olympism Camp
2023 奧林匹克主義體驗營
The 2023 Olympism Camp was held at the Hong Kong Federation 
of Youth Groups Jockey Club Sai Kung Outdoor Training Camp 
from 5 to 7 April 2023, with the participation of 69 student and 
youth athletes nominated by secondary schools and NSAs, as 
well as members of the Hong Kong Olympic Fan Club. The three-
day camp included sports experience, teambuilding activities, 
anti-doping and nutrition workshops, aimed at promoting the 
Olympic values and team spirit.

To echo with the "green" concept of the Hangzhou Asian Games, 
environmental protection and art workshops were organized to 
raise the environmental protection awareness of the participants, 
while encouraging self-expressions through art creation.

2023奧林匹克主義體驗營於2023年4月5至
7日在香港青年協會賽馬會西貢戶外訓練營
舉行，69名參加者包括來自中學提名的學
生運動員、各體育總會推薦的青少年運動
員，以及香港奧林匹克之友成員。三日的體
驗營活動包括運動體驗、團隊建立活動、運
動禁藥及營養學工作坊等，旨在向參加者宣
揚奧林匹克價值和團隊精神。

是次體驗營加入環保及藝術工作坊，一方面
響應杭州亞運的「綠色」理念，提升參加者
的環保意識，同時讓他們透過藝術創作表達
自己。

The art workshop provides a learning experience that 
incorporates sports, culture and arts.

藝術工作坊提供了一個糅合體育、文化與藝術的學習體驗。

Participants and guests pose for a group photo at the Closing Ceremony.

參加者與嘉賓於閉幕禮合照。

Participants learn about the importance of team 
spirit through teambuilding activities.

參加者於團隊建設活動中學習團隊精神的重要性。
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SF&OC Greater Bay Area Youth Sports Exchange Programme 2023-2024
2023-2024 年度港協暨奧委會大灣區青年運動員交流計劃
In 2023-2024, SF&OC organized three exchange programmes 
in the Greater Bay Area with support from the Sports Bureau 
of Guangdong Province and the Guangdong Provincial Social 
Sports, Sports Training and Competition Center. The programmes 
took place in Guangzhou and Foshan from 19 to 22 July 2023, in 
Guangzhou and Nansha from 8 to 11 August, and in Guangzhou, 
Dongguan and Shunde from 27 to 30 December respectively.

The delegations of the three exchange programmes strengthened 
their sports skills and built friendship by participating in 
sports exchange activities, joint training and friendly matches 
alongside athletes from the Guangdong Province. In addition, 
the delegations visited sports facilities, cultural and historical 
monuments in different cities, which enabled them to understand 
our country's development and learn more about the history and 
characteristics of the cities in the Greater Bay Area.

在2023-2024年度，本會獲廣東省體育局及
廣東省社會體育和訓練競賽中心的支持，舉
辦了三次大灣區青年運動員交流計劃。計劃
分別於2023年7月19至22日在廣州及佛山、
8月8至11日在廣州及南沙，以及12月27至
30日在廣州、東莞及順德進行。

透過計劃，代表團與廣東省運動員進行運動
技術交流、共同訓練及參與友誼賽，加強
他們的運動技能和建立友誼。此外，代表團
參觀了不同城市的體育設施、文化與歷史建
築，加深對國情的了解，以及對大灣區城市
歷史與特色的認識。

Led by Dr. David MONG, Vice President of SF&OC, the first delegation has more than 90 participants, including young athletes, 
coaches and officials from Hockey, Table Tennis and Water Polo.

首個交流團由本會副會長蒙德揚博士擔任代表團團長，共有超過 90 人參與，包括曲棍球、乒乓球和水球的青年運動員、教練及領隊。



CORPORATE INVOLVEMENT
機構事務

35ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024
2023-2024 周年報告

Hong Kong Olympic Academy – Local Seminars 2023-2024
香港奧林匹克學院 ─ 2023-2024 年度本地研討會
The Hong Kong Olympic Academy (HKOA) organized four local 
seminars during the year, including the Sports Event Management 
Seminar, Sports Psychology Seminar, Sports Injury Seminar and 
Sports Marketing Seminar, with about 400 participants in total. 
The seminars aimed to broaden the horizons and knowledge of 
sports administrators, coaches, athletes, lecturers and students on 
the subject matters. HKOA endeavours to continue organizing 
various activities for NSAs and related personnel, which provide 
more opportunities for self-enrichment and exchange.

香港奧林匹克學院在本年度舉辦了四場本
地研討會，主題包括「義工參與體育研討
會」、「運動心理學研討會」、「運動創
傷研討會」及「體育營銷研討會」，共有
近400人參加。研討會旨在擴闊體育行政人
員、教練、運動員、講師和學生在相關範疇
的視野和知識。學院未來將繼續舉辦更多活
動，為體育總會及相關人土提供更多自我增
值及互相交流的機會。

Mr. Edgar YANG, Honorary Secretary General of SF&OC, leads over 70 participants for the third delegation, including 
young athletes, coaches and officials from Basketball, Shuttlecock and Softball.

第三團由本會義務秘書長楊祖賜帶領，超過 70 人，包括籃球、足毽和壘球的青年運動員、教練和領隊。

The second delegation, led by Mr. WONG Po Kee, Honorary Deputy Secretary General of SF&OC, has over 70 participants, 
including young athletes, coaches and officials from Archery, Beach Volleyball and Handball.

第二團有超過 70 人參與，當中包括射箭、沙灘排球和手球的青年運動員、教練和領隊，由本會義務副秘書長黃寶基擔任團長。
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Hong Kong Olympic Academy – Overseas Study Tours
香港奧林匹克學院 ─ 海外交流會議
With the support of HKOA, SF&OC delegated representatives 
to participate in four overseas study tours to gain a deeper 
understanding of the latest developments in sports in different 
countries and regions.

Date 
日期 

Tour 
交流會議 

Location 
地點

Representative 
參加代表

10 to 22 June 2023 
2023年6月10至22日 

63rd International 
Session for 
Young Olympic 
Ambassadors 

第 63 屆國際青年奧林
匹克大使會議 

Athens, Greece 
希臘雅典 

YIP Wai Man,  
retired aerobic 
gymnastics athlete 

退役健美體操運動員 
葉慧雯

16 to 25 June 2023 
2023年6月16至25日 

2nd STEP South East 
Asia Youth Sports 
Leaders Camp 

第 2 屆 STEP 東南亞
青少年領袖訓練營

Singapore 
新加坡 

Stephanie LAU, 
flying disc athlete

現役飛盤運動員
劉浩晴

22 to 27 October 
2023 
2023年10月22至27日 

8th Youth Camp of 
Chinese Olympic 
Committee  

第 8 屆中國奧委會 
青年營

Beijing, China 
中國北京 

CHUNG Hoi Tik, 
canoe athlete

現役獨木舟運動員
鍾凱翟

27 to 30 November 
2023 
2023年11月27至30日 

PyeongChang 
International 
Conference for 
Olympic Studies and 
Research Centres 
(PICOSRC) 2023 

2023 平昌國際奧林匹
克研究中心會議 

PyeongChang, 
Republic of Korea
韓國平昌 

Prof. Ada LI, 
Member of HKOA 
and Vice President 
of HKCT Institute of 
Higher Education

香港奧林匹克學院委
員及港專學院副校長
李慧慈教授

在香港奧林匹克學院的支持下，本會委派代
表參加四場海外交流會議，加深了解不同國
家及地區的最新體育發展。

Stephanie LAU is commended at the Closing Ceremony of the 
camp for her leadership skills.

劉浩晴在訓練營閉幕禮上獲大會嘉許她的領導才能。
Prof. Ada LI gives a presentation at PICOSRC.

李慧慈教授在平昌國際奧林匹克研究中心會議發表演說。
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Olympic Voice of Hong Kong
《奧訊》

During the year, three issues of the Olympic Voice of Hong Kong 
were published, covering a wide range of topics including 
interviews with the Chef de Mission of the Hong Kong, China 
Delegation to the Hangzhou Asian Games and rising stars in 
the sports arena, introduction of emerging urban sports, photo 
collections of Team Hong Kong, China, etc. The publication aims 
to keep all sectors of the community and the public abreast 
of the efforts by SF&OC in preparing for multi-sports games, 
promoting sports development and supporting the career 
transformation of athletes.

本會在本年度出版了三期《奧訊》，題材廣
泛，內容包括杭州亞運中國香港代表團團長
和體壇後起之秀的專訪、介紹新興城市運
動、港隊比賽圖輯等，讓社會各界和公眾加
深認識本會在籌備參與綜合項目運動會、推
動體育發展和支援運動員轉型等工作。
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Hong Kong Olympic Fan Club
香港奧林匹克之友
Hong Kong Olympic Fan Club (HKOFC) is a subsidiary of SF&OC 
that aims at promoting the public's interest in sports through a 
wide range of sports experiences, sharing and volunteer activities 
that are organized in collaboration with schools, enterprises and 
charitable organizations, and building a harmonious society by 
integrating the Olympic spirit of solidarity and mutual respect 
into the activities.

During the year, a total of 19 activities were arranged for the 
members. By the end of March 2024, HKOFC has a membership 
of over 8 200.

United to support Team Hong Kong, China for 
Hangzhou Asian Games 

To call on the public to support Team Hong Kong, China to 
the Hangzhou Asian Games, Mr. Kenneth FOK, Chairperson 
of HKOFC, together with Mr. WONG Kam Po, Chairperson of 
SF&OC's Athletes Committee, led young athletes to reach out to 
the community in August 2023 to promote the Asian Games and 
call for support to Hong Kong athletes. On 23 September 2023, 
HKOFC members gathered at a shopping mall to watch the 
live broadcast of the Opening Ceremony of the Asian Games. 
Members also took part in four cheering activities to watch 
the live broadcast of competitions during the games period to 
cheer for the athletes. To continue the momentum of the Asian 
Games, HKOFC co-organized a sharing session with Hong Kong 
College of Technology (HKCT) on 6 December 2023. Hangzhou 
Asian Games wushu athletes Samuei HUI and Juanita MOK 
shared the ups and downs of their athletic journey with 
over 120 HKOFC members and HKCT students and teachers 
attending the event, and encouraged them to rise to challenge 
with a positive perspective.

香港奧林匹克之友由港協暨奧委會成立，
透過與學校、企業和慈善團體等合作，舉辦
多元化的運動體驗、交流和義工活動，提高
公眾對體育運動的興趣，並且在活動中融入
團結和互相尊重等奧林匹克精神，共建和諧
社會。

在本年度內，本會為會員共安排19次活動。
截至2024年3月底，香港奧林匹克之友的會
員人數已超過8 200人。

帶動社會氣氛 
齊心支持港隊出戰亞運 

為支持港隊出戰杭州亞運，香港奧林匹克之
友主席霍啟剛聯同港協暨奧委會運動員委
員會主席黃金寶，帶領一眾年青運動員，於
2023 年 8 月連日走進社區宣傳亞運，呼籲
市民齊撐港隊。在 2023 年 9 月 23 日杭州
亞運揭幕當日，香港奧林匹克之友會員齊
集商場觀看開幕禮直播；亞運期間，會員
參與了四場地區「全城打氣直播賽事」活
動，一同為港隊打氣。為延續亞運熱潮，
香港奧林匹克之友與香港專業進修學校於
2023 年 12 月 6 日合辦分享會，邀得亞運
武術港隊運動員許得恩和莫宛螢，與超過
120 名會員及師生細訴運動生涯的高低起
跌，鼓勵大家以正向思維面對挑戰。

Athletes calling on the public to support Team 
Hong Kong, China to the Hangzhou Asian Games.

運動員呼籲市民齊撐港隊出戰杭州亞運。
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Connecting the Community and Enhancing 
Communication 

During the year, HKOFC continued to arrange activities for 
members through connecting the community and athletes.  
Members were invited to attend the Awards Presentation 
Ceremony of Cathay 2022 Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards 
to witness the joyful moment of the awarding athletes. At 
the occasion of the Lantern Festival, members were joined 
by athletes WONG Hok Him (Chinese Chess), Rita LIU (Judo), 
CHENG Yuet Yee (Cycling) and Darren WONG (Rugby) to pay a 
visit to an elderly health centre and made traditional pastries 
with the elderly. To further strengthen the relations, HKOFC 
hosted a Christmas Dinner on 19 December 2023 for over 400 
representatives of NSAs and collaborators from various sectors 
as an appreciation for their continuous support to SF&OC.

連繫社會 加強交流
香港奧林匹克之友在本年度內，繼續連繫各
界和運動員，為會員安排不同活動，例如
邀請會員出席「國泰 2022 年度香港傑出運
動員選舉頒獎典禮」，見證運動員得獎的感
動時刻；而在元宵佳節，一眾會員偕同運動
員黃學謙（中國象棋）、廖芷慧（柔道）、
鄭悅宜（單車）和黃駿傑（欖球）做義工，
到長者健康中心探訪，並與長者製作傳統糕
點。為進一步加強聯繫，香港奧林匹克之友
於 2023 年 12 月 19 日舉行聖誕晚宴，與接
近 400 位來自各個體育總會和不同界別的
合作夥伴共聚，藉此感謝他們一直以來對港
協暨奧委會的支持。

HKOFC members and athletes pay a visit to 
an elderly health centre and make traditional 
pastries with the elderly.

香港奧林匹克之友會員偕同運動員到長者健康
中心探訪，並與長者製作傳統糕點。

HKOFC members watch the live broadcast of the Opening 
Ceremony of the Asian Games at a shopping mall.

香港奧林匹克之友會員齊集商場觀看亞運開幕禮直播。

HKOFC hosts a Christmas Dinner for representatives 
of NSAs and collaborators from various sectors.

香港奧林匹克之友舉行聖誕晚宴，與體育總會和不同
界別的合作夥伴共聚。
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"Passing The Torch On" 
Passing Positive Energy to Youth 

Subsidized by the Funding Scheme for Youth Positive Thinking 
Activities of the HKSAR Government, HKOFC launched a two-
year Passing The Torch On Programme offering a variety 
of sports-themed activities to encourage youngsters aged 
between 12 and 25 to develop their potential and cultivate a 
positive mindset. Several athletes sharing sessions have been 
organized during the year, with a view to leveraging on the 
perseverance of athletes and the Olympic values to inspire the 
young participants to strive for self-improvement in the face 
of adversity, thereby building self-confidence and developing a 
positive attitude.

「運動傳．承」計劃 
向青年傳遞正能量
香港奧林匹克之友獲得特區政府「青年正向
思維活動資助計劃」資助，推出為期兩年的

「運動傳．承」計劃，透過舉辦一系列體育
運動相關的活動，鼓勵 12 至 25 歲的青年
發展個人潛能，提升正向思維。計劃於本年
度已舉辦多場運動員分享會，以運動員堅毅
不屈的精神及奧林匹克價值啟發參加者逆境
自強，從而建立自信和培養積極的態度。

The Kick-off Ceremony of Passing The Torch On Programme on 
27 January 2024.

「運動傳．承」計劃啟動禮於 2024 年 1 月 27 日舉行。
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Athletes Career and Education Support
運動員就業及教育支援

Retired Athletes Transformation Programme
退役運動員轉型計劃
The Retired Athletes Transformation Programme (RATP) provides 
retired athletes with a maximum six-year transition support as 
they integrate into the workforce and adapt to a new work 
culture. With job matching, education subsidies, on-job training 
and career consultation services, RATP equips retired athletes 
with knowledge and skills to pursue a second career.

Retired athletes can choose to either work as a School Sports 
Promotion Coordinator or Sports Administrator for Sports 
Organizations to gain work experience. The second phase 
of RATP (2021-2024) successfully matched 71 and 28 retired 
athletes with schools and sports organizations respectively.

There is a record high of 135 and 27 applications from schools 
and sports organizations respectively for the third phase of RATP 
(2024-2027), which is to commence from 1 September 2024.

Scholarship

RATP encourages beneficiary athletes to pursue advanced 
studies for higher academic qualifications. Since 2018, RATP has 
allocated more than 70 education subsidies for retired athletes, 
enabling them to take up sports related programmes at tertiary 
institutions.

"With a clear goal, all challenges can be overcome. 
I will keep on pursuing continuous studies and self- 
enhancement."

「朝著目標進發，沒甚麼難題解決不了。我定必繼續進修，
讓自己不斷進步。」

Gigi HO, retired sport climbing athlete

何鳳芝 — 退役運動攀登運動員

「退役運動員轉型計劃」為退役運動員提供
最多六年轉型過渡期的支援，協助他們適應
身份轉變及職場文化。本計劃設有工作配
對、進修資助、在職培訓及生涯規劃諮詢
等，支援退役運動員提升資歷及工作技能，
以順利轉型。

退役運動員可按個人發展方向，選擇到學校
任職「學校體育推廣主任」，或到體育機構
任職「體育機構行政人員」，汲取工作經驗。
第二期計劃（2021-2024 學年）成功配對
71 名退役運動員於學校工作，及 28 名退役
運動員於體育機構工作。

第三期計劃（2024-2027學年）申請反應熱
烈，共收到135份學校及27份體育機構申請
表，為歷屆最多，計劃將於2024年9月1日
展開。

獎學金
本計劃鼓勵受惠運動員於工餘時間進修，自
我增值。計劃自 2018 年至今，已批出超過 
70 項進修資助予退役運動員修讀體育相關
的大專院校課程。

Athlete Sharing 運動員分享



CORPORATE INVOLVEMENT
機構事務

SPORTS FEDERATION & OLYMPIC COMMITTEE OF HONG KONG, CHINA
中國香港體育協會暨奧林匹克委員會

42

"RATP enabled me to understand the work 
environment and culture of schools. During my 
three-year tenure, I organized various sports 
activities and encouraged students' participation. 
Meanwhile, I advanced myself and improved 
competitiveness through continuous studies."

「計劃有助我了解學校的工作環境和文化。三年任期
中，我在校內籌備不同體育活動，鼓勵學生參與，
同時我亦把握時間進修，提升競爭力。」

"During my time with SF&OC's Sports Legacy Company 
Limited, my main responsibilities are administration 
work, such as procurement, managing the coaching 
team, and liaison tasks. This has enriched my experience 
and laid the ground for my career growth."

「加入港協暨奧委會奧夢成真有限公司期間，我主要負責文
書及管理工作，例如採購、管理教練、協調課堂等，有助
我累積經驗，為未來職業發展奠下基礎。」

Hera LEUNG, retired cycling athlete and a 
School Sports Promotion Coordinator in 
2023-2024

梁愷樺 — 退役單車運動員，2023-2024 年度
任職學校體育推廣主任

WONG Wai Chun, retired rowing athlete, now a 
Sport Administrator for Sport Organizations

王瑋駿 — 退役賽艇運動員，現職體育機構行政人員
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HKACED Annual Event
「無憂追夢 延續運動緣」運動嘉年華

Over 7 000 athletes and members of the public participated in 
the Annual Event organized by the Hong Kong Athletes Career 
& Education Department (HKACED) and its employment and 
professional training platform, Sports Legacy Company Limited. 
The event was held in a roving format from 29 February to  
17 March 2024 at Tuen Mun Town Plaza, Citywalk and Olympian 
City, thanks to the venue support by Sino Group .

Through close interactions with Hong Kong athletes and a 
variety of sports experience, demonstrations and sharing, the 
event aims to engage members of the public and deepen their 
understanding of the work and services of HKACED. It also aims 
to encourage the public to support and participate in sports 
activities.

超過 7 000 名運動員及公眾人士參與由香港
運動員就業及教育部（HKACED）及其轄下
實習及就業平台「奧夢成真有限公司」舉辦
的年度活動 —「無憂追夢 延續運動緣」 運動
嘉年華。活動獲信和集團支持，於 2024 年
2 月 29 日至 3 月 17 日期間在旗下屯門市廣
場、荃新天地及奧海城巡迴舉行。

是次活動旨在讓大眾近距離接觸港隊運動
員，透過不同的運動體驗、運動員示範和分
享等加深公眾認識 HKACED 及其支援服務，
藉此鼓勵公眾支持及參與體育活動。

Guests and athletes participate in the opening and closing ceremonies of the Annual Event.

一眾嘉賓及運動員出席支持「無憂追夢 延續運動緣」 運動嘉年華開幕及閉幕典禮。
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(From left) Karatedo athletes LEE Ka Wai, YIP Ching Yee and 
LEE Wai Chi conduct sports demonstrations and share their 
experiences.

（由左起）空手道運動員李嘉維、葉靜怡和李偉志進行運動示範及
分享。

Photo spot and various interactive games.

「打卡」裝置和運動體驗區。

Students of Hong Kong Taoist Association Shun Yeung Primary 
School demonstrate new taekwondo skills with Sports Legacy 
coaches KWAN Wai Lam, Angel JIM and Liam KO.

奧夢成真教練關煒霖、詹港艷和高松漢帶領香港道教聯合會純陽小學
的學生展示跆拳道訓練成果。
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Sports Legacy Scheme
「奧夢成真」計劃

Sports Legacy Company Limited (SLCL), being HKACED's 
professional training and employment platform, continues to 
provide comprehensive support to beneficiary schools, promote 
sports and Olympism, and support Hong Kong athletes to 
develop their own coaching careers.

The Jockey Club "Flying High" Sports Programme 

Organized by SLCL with the donation of the Hong Kong Jockey 
Club Charities Trust, the second phase of the Jockey Club "Flying 
High" Sports Programme (September 2021 to August 2024) 
benefits 30 secondary schools annually, with an aim to promote 
Olympic values and positive thinking through a series of fitness 
and sports activities.

Inter-School Fitness Challenge Competition 

As an annual flagship event, the 3rd Inter-school Fitness Challenge 
Competition was held at the Hong Kong Chu Hai College on 
8 July 2023. Nearly 350 students from 20 schools participated. 
They were required to complete 10 fitness exercises in the 
shortest possible time and in a set order, demonstrating the 
Olympic values of excellence, respect and friendship.

「奧夢成真」計劃是香港運動員就業及教育部
轄下的實習及就業平台，持續為受惠學校提
供全方位支援，推廣體育和奧林匹克精神，
並協助港隊運動員發展教練事業。

賽馬會「奧翔」計劃
由「奧夢成真」主辦、香港賽馬會慈善信
託基金捐助的第二期賽馬會「奧翔」計劃 

（2021年9月至2024年8月）每年惠及30間
中學，旨在透過體育活動宣揚奧林匹克價
值，協助青少年建立正面價值觀。

校際體能挑戰賽
作為賽馬會「奧翔」計劃年度盛事，第三屆
校際體能挑戰賽於 2023 年 7 月 8 日在香港
珠海學院舉行，吸引來自 20 間學校近 350 名
學生參與，學生須以最短時間並按既定次序
完成 10 個體能動作，展現「卓越」、「尊重」
及「友誼」三大奧林匹克價值。

Athletes share their knowledge, skills and experience to students 
through specific sports training.

運動員透過「專項運動訓練」向學生分享體育知識、技能和經驗，
薪火相傳。

The 3rd Inter-school Fitness Challenge 
Competition Kick-off Ceremony.

第三屆校際體能挑戰賽啟動禮。

Olympic educational games cultivate Olympic values of 
excellence, respect and friendship.

「奧林匹克競技遊戲」讓學生從中學習奧林匹克價值：卓越、尊重和
友誼。
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Participants push their limits with the unwavering support of 
their peers.

比賽現場氣氛熱烈，參加者在打氣聲下全力以赴。

Specific Sports Lessons provide students with the opportunity 
to explore a variety of sports and encourage them to develop 
interests and their potential.

專項運動班讓學生接觸不同運動項目，鼓勵他們培養興趣並發掘
潛能。

Through parent-child sports games, "Little Ambassadors" 
pass on Olympic values, knowledge of food nutrition and 
body structure to the students and parents.

「健康小領袖」以親子體育遊戲教授學生及家長奧林匹克價值、
食物營養及身體結構相關知識。

The Youth Olympian Programme 

The two-year Youth Olympian Programme was launched in 
September 2022 with a view to promoting Olympic values and 
a healthy and active lifestyle for students from 20 beneficiary 
primary schools, thereby promoting whole-person development 
of the younger generation. During the year, the programme 
continued a series of educational sports activities in the 
beneficiary schools, including the Kick-off Ceremony for the 
programme, Specific Sports Lessons, "Little Ambassadors" and a 
sports carnival.

奧苗計劃
「奧夢成真」於 2022 年 9 月推出為期兩年

的「奧苗計劃」，旨在向合共 20 間受惠小
學的學生宣揚奧林匹克價值及健康活躍的生
活方式，從而促進學童全人發展。在本年度
內，計劃繼續向受惠小學提供一系列具教育
意義的體育活動，包括奧苗計劃啟動禮、專
項運動班、「健康小領袖」和運動嘉年華。
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Summer Sports Carnival 

As the flagship event of Youth Olympian Programme, the 
Summer Sports Carnival took place at Olympic City from 13 to 
16 July 2023. A series of activities, including five major sports 
experience zones, athlete meet-and-greet, exhibition and 
souvenir redemptions, was offered to inspire children's and 
teenagers' interest in sports, and encourage them to foster self-
confidence and well-being. The four-day carnival also promoted 
the Olympic spirit and sports knowledge in the community, 
attracting the participation of 2 000 members of the public and 
students of beneficiary schools.

夏日城市運動嘉年華
作為奧苗計劃重點項目，「夏日城市運動嘉
年華」在 2023 年 7 月 13 至 16 日於奧海城
舉行，為公眾提供包括五大運動體驗、奧運
健兒見面會、展覽區及紀念品換領等活動，
啟發兒童及青少年對運動的興趣，鼓勵他們
成為自信、健康的人，藉此向社區宣揚奧林
匹克精神及推廣體育知識。一連四日的嘉年
華吸引近 2 000 名公眾人士及受惠學校學生
參與。

Opening Ceremony of the Summer Sports Carnival.

「夏日城市運動嘉年華」開幕典禮。

Athletes attending the Opening Ceremony include (from left) 
WONG Cho Hei (Softball), SHEK Wai Hung (Gymnastics), 
NG Kiu Chung (Gymnastics), LAM Hin Wai (Fencing), CHOI Wan Yu 
(Karatedo), WONG Cheuk Ning (Athletics), TSUI Shuk Ki (Judo), 
etc.

多名港隊運動員出席開幕禮，（由左起）包括黃楚曦（壘球）、石偉雄 
（體操）、吳翹充（體操）、林衍蕙（劍擊）、蔡韻瑜（空手道）、

黃卓寧（田徑）、徐淑琪（柔道）等。

Five major sports experience zones.

五大運動體驗區。

Prof. Herman HU (third from right), Chairman of HKACED 
Committee, participates in a sports experience booth.

香港運動員就業及教育部委員會主席胡曉明教授（右三）親身參與
運動體驗。
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Sports Exchanges and Visits
體育組織拜訪及交流

Participation in Olympic Related Programmes outside Hong Kong
於香港以外地方參與有關奧林匹克的活動

Olympic Related Programme outside Hong Kong
香港以外地方有關奧林匹克的活動

25th Asian Sport for All Association (ASFAA)  
General Assembly 
16 April 2023

第 25 屆亞洲群眾體育協會周年大會
2023 年 4 月 16 日

42nd Olympic Council of Asia General Assembly
8 July 2023

第 42 屆亞奧理事會周年大會 
2023 年 7 月 8 日

40th East Asian Olympic Committees (EAOC) Council 
Meeting and Meetings of Standing Committees
15 August 2023

第 40 屆東亞奧委會常務委員會會議及常設委員會會議
2023 年 8 月 15 日

28th The Association For International Sport for All 
(TAFISA) World Congress and TAFISA General Assembly
1 to 5 November 2023

第 28 屆國際群眾體育協會世界會議及國際群眾體育協會 
周年大會
2023 年 11 月 1 至 5 日

41st EAOC Council Meeting (virtual)
9 to 10 January 2024

第 41 屆東亞奧委會常務委員會會議（網上）
2024 年 1 月 9 至 10 日

Participating Officer of SF&OC
出席會議的本會委員

Mr. WONG Po Kee, Hon. Deputy Secretary General
義務副秘書長黃寶基先生 

Mr. Timothy T. T. FOK, President
會長霍震霆先生
Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG, Hon. Secretary General
義務秘書長楊祖賜先生
Mr. WONG Po Kee, Hon. Deputy Secretary General
義務副秘書長黃寶基先生

Mr. Timothy T. T. FOK, President
會長霍震霆先生
Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG, Hon. Secretary General
義務秘書長楊祖賜先生
Dr. Julian W. CHANG, Hon. Medical Advisor  
名譽醫學顧問張維醫生

Mr. WONG Po Kee, Hon. Deputy Secretary General
義務副秘書長黃寶基先生

Mr. Timothy T. T. FOK, President
會長霍震霆先生
Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG, Hon. Secretary General
義務秘書長楊祖賜先生
Dr. Julian W. CHANG, Hon. Medical Advisor
名譽醫學顧問張維醫生
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Meeting with Representatives of Sports Sector
與體育界代表會晤

Meeting with Delegation from Administration of 
Sport of Guangzhou Municipality
30 June 2023

與廣州市體育局代表團會晤
2023 年 6 月 30 日

Courtesy Visit by Shandong Sports Bureau
15 November 2023

山東省體育局禮節性拜訪
2023 年 11 月 15 日

Courtesy Visit by Commissioner for Sports
14 September 2023

體育專員禮節性拜訪
2023 年 9 月 14 日

Mr. Timothy FOK, President of SF&OC and the Board 
of Officers of SF&OC welcomed the delegation led by 
Ms. TAN Aiying, Director-General of the Administration 
of Sport of Guangzhou Municipality, to the Olympic 
House. Both parties exchanged views on talent training, 
sport for all activities, cooperation in sports and cultural 
exchanges, and discussed future development of sports 
in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

港協暨奧委會會長霍震霆及一眾委員於奧運大樓接待由
廣州市體育局局長譚愛英率領的代表團，雙方就培養體育
人才、群眾體育活動、體育及文化交流合作等事宜交流意
見，並探討未來粵港澳大灣區體育發展。

On 14 September 2023, Mr. Sam WONG, Commissioner 
for Sports, paid a courtesy visit to SF&OC at the Olympic 
House to meet with Mr. Timothy FOK, President of 
SF&OC, and the Board of Officers of SF&OC to exchange 
views on sports policies and sports development in 
Hong Kong.

體育專員黃德森於 2023 年 9 月 14 日到訪奧運大樓，與
港協暨奧委會會長霍震霆及一眾委員會面，就香港的體育
政策及發展深入交流。

Board of Officers of SF&OC met with the delegation 
led by Ms. WANG Guiying, Vice-Governor of Shandong 
Provincial People's Government on 15 November 2023. 
Both parties exchanged views on a number of issues, 
including future sports development and promoting 
sports exchanges and cooperation between Mainland 
China and Hong Kong.  

港協暨奧委會一眾委員於 2023 年 11 月 15 日與由山東省
人民政府副省長王桂英率領的代表團會晤，雙方就兩地體
育發展以及未來兩地體育交流和合作交換意見。
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During the year, SF&OC continued to keep the public abreast 
of the latest news about its events and Team Hong Kong, China 
taking part in multi-sports events through its official social 
media channels – Facebook, Instagram and YouTube. During 
the Ulaanbaatar East Asian Youth Games and Hangzhou Asian 
Games, SF&OC provided timely updates on, among others, 
Games results and competition photos, for the first time on its 
social medial channels. A number of videos featuring interviews 
with athletes before and after the Games were also produced 
and published. The engagement rates and number of views of 
these contents were seen to spike across all channels, achieving 
the goal of enhancing public understanding of athletes' stories 
and raising public awareness of the Games. 

In the next financial year, SF&OC will launch an official WhatsApp 
channel, with an aim to disseminate information through a 
variety of channels to reach and connect with a wider audience.

本年度，港協暨奧委會繼續善用社交媒體，
透過 Facebook、Instagram 及 YouTube 官
方帳號向公眾發布訊息，包括港協暨奧委會
活動，以及港隊參與綜合項目運動會的最新
資訊。在烏蘭巴托東亞青年運動會及杭州亞
運會，港協暨奧委會首次透過社交媒體發
放港隊實時資訊，例如賽果、賽事精華照片
等，並製作一系列短片，訪問運動員備賽及
賽後感受。各平台的互動率或觀看次數均明
顯上升，加深公眾對運動員的認識，並提升
社會對運動會的關注度，成效顯著。

於 下 一 年 度， 港 協 暨 奧 委 會 開 設 官 方
WhatsApp 頻道，透過更多渠道發放資訊，
以期觸及更廣泛的公眾。
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posts
帖文

videos
影片

stories
則限時動態

live streams
次直播

＋ ＋

Around 1 million

約100萬
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Around 約 Around 約

500

500 267

132 10168,600 167,000

Contents published
內容數目

Contents published
內容數目

Contents published
內容數目

Content interactions
互動總次數

Total views
總觀看次數

Accounts reached
觸及帳戶

Accounts reached
觸及帳戶

Promotion
宣傳推廣

Figures at-a-glance
數字一覽

Sponsorship
贊助
Apart from the backing of the HKSAR Government, the work of 
SF&OC relies on the unstinting support of commercial sponsors. 
This year, Cathay and the Industrial and Commercial Bank of 
China (Asia) have respectively continued their partnership with 
SF&OC as corporate sponsors. 

SF&OC gratefully acknowledges all the organizations listed 
below for their sponsorship and support in facilitating the work 
of SF&OC and sports promotion in Hong Kong during the year.

港協暨奧委會的工作，除了一直得到特區
政府的全力支持外，亦有賴商業機構的慷慨
贊助。在今個年度，本會分別獲得國泰及
中國工商銀行（亞洲）延續其企業贊助的合
作夥伴關係。

本會衷心感謝下列各個機構在年度內的贊助
及支持，協助本會發展及向公眾推廣體育運
動的工作。
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Corporate Sponsors 企業贊助

Other Sponsors/Collaborators 其他贊助／支持機構

Bonaqua® Mineralized Water
Bonaqua® 礦物質水

China Mengniu Dairy Co. Ltd
中國蒙牛乳業有限公司

China Travel Service (H.K.) Ltd.
香港中國旅行社

Friends of the Earth (HK)
香港地球之友

Hang Seng Bank
恒生銀行

HKR International Limited
香港興業國際集團有限公司

Ocean Park Corporation 
海洋公園公司

Priority Pass

Saint Francis University
聖方濟各大學

Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
新鴻基地產發展有限公司

The Education University of Hong Kong
香港教育大學

Vocational Training Council
職業訓練局

Caritas Bianchi College of Careers
明愛白英奇專業學校

China Mobile International Limited
中國移動香港有限公司

EF English Centers

Germagic Biochemical Technology Co., Ltd.

HKEX Foundation Limited
香港交易所慈善基金

Hong Kong Disneyland Resort
香港迪士尼樂園度假區

Ontario eSchool
加拿大安省網上中學

Ryoden Development Limited
菱電發展有限公司

Sino Group
信和集團

The Adecco Group

The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong
香港恒生大學
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SF&OC and Shun Hing Group jointly established the Panasonic 
Sports Scholarship Programme for Hong Kong athletes. Ten 
athletes were awarded scholarships with a total amount of 
HK$3,456,000 from January 2022 to August 2024 for their 
participation in the Hangzhou Asian Games and Paris 2024 
Olympic Games.

All scholarship holders were qualified for the Hangzhou Asian 
Games. They were CHING Siu Nga (Athletics), NG Ka Long 
(Badminton), Ryan CHOI (Fencing), Kaylin HSIEH (Fencing), 
CHIU Hin Chun (Rowing), Ian HO (Swimming), HO Kwan Kit 
(Table Tennis), LEE Ho Ching (Table Tennis), Eudice CHONG 
(Tennis) and Oscar COGGINS (Triathlon). Three of them were 
also qualified for the Paris 2024 Olympic Games, including 
CHIU Hin Chun (Rowing), Ian HO (Swimming) and LEE Ho Ching 
(Table Tennis).

10 sports personalities were awarded in the 2023 HKSAR 
Government's Honours List:

港 協 暨 奧 委 會 與 信 興 集 團 聯 合 設 立
「Panasonic 運 動 獎 學 金 計 劃 」 予 香 港 運

動員。10 位獲獎運動員在 2022 年 1 月至
2024 年 8 月期間獲頒合共 $3,456,000 港元
的運動獎學金，以幫助他們備戰杭州亞運及
巴黎 2024 奧運會。

所有獲獎運動員均取得杭州亞運參賽資格，
包括：程小雅（田徑）、伍家朗（羽毛球）、
蔡俊彥（劍擊）、佘繕妡（劍擊）、趙顯臻（賽
艇）、何甄陶（游泳）、何鈞傑（乒乓球）、
李皓晴（乒乓球）、張瑋桓（網球）和奧斯卡 

（三項鐵人）。當中三位獲獎運動員更取得
巴黎 2024 奧運會參賽資格，包括：趙顯臻

（賽艇）、何甄陶（游泳）和李皓晴（乒乓球）。

在2023年香港特區政府授勳名單中共有10位
體育界人士：

Panasonic Sports Scholarship Programme
Panasonic 運動獎學金計劃

Sports Celebrities Honoured by HKSAR Government
獲香港特區政府嘉許的體育界人士

Grand Bauhinia Medal
大紫荊勳賢

Gold Bauhinia Star
金紫荊星章

Silver Bauhinia Star
銀紫荊星章

Medal of Honour
榮譽勳章

Chief Executive's Commendation 
for Community Service
行政長官社區服務獎狀

Justices of the Peace
太平紳士

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK, GBM, GBS, JP
霍震霆先生 大紫荊勳賢，GBS, JP 

Prof. Herman S. M. HU, GBS, JP
胡曉明教授 GBS, JP

Mrs. Jenny K. H. M. FUNG, SBS, BBS, JP
馮馬潔嫻女士 SBS, BBS, JP

Mr. SUEN Kwok Lam, SBS, BBS, MH, JP
孫國林先生 SBS, BBS, MH, JP

Dr. Lobo H. T. LOUIE, MH
雷雄德博士 MH

Mr. Edward W. O. CHIK
戚偉安先生
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai
陳俊輝先生

The Hon. YIU Pak Leung, MH, JP
姚柏良議員 MH, JP

Ms. Cherry K. C. LING, GBS, JP
凌潔貞女士 GBS, JP 

Mr. Thomas T. M. CHOW, GBS, JP
周達明先生 GBS, JP
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The directors submit herewith their report and audited financial statements of Sports Federation & Olympic 
Committee of Hong Kong, China (the “Federation”) for the year ended 31 March 2024. 
 
Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Federation are development and promotion of sports in Hong Kong.  
 
Results 
The results of the Federation for the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in the statement of comprehensive 
income on pages 6 to 7.  
 
According to the Federation’s Articles of Association, distribution of surplus is not allowed. 
 
Directors  
The directors who held office during the year or during the period from the end of the year to the date of this 
report were: 
 
Fok Timothy Tsun Ting (President)  
Kwok Chi Leung Karl  
Yue Kwok Leung Tony  
Stevenson Thomas Brian  
Hu Shao Ming Herman  
Tong Wai Lun William  
Fok Kai Kong Kenneth  
Mong Tak Yeung David  
Wong Man Chiu Ronnie   
Yang Joe Tsi   
Wong Po Kee  
Perry Ho Kim Fai  
Mok Kwan Yat (elected on 26 April 2023) 
Wong Leung Wai  
Wong Kam Po  

 
In accordance with the Federation’s Articles of Association, except for Mr. WONG Kam Po, the representative 
of the Athletes Committee who shall hold office whilst and for so long as he/she satisfies the conditions 
attaching to his/her appointment in accordance with Article 11(2), the other directors are subject to the term 
limits and the cycle of election in accordance with Article 11(6). 
 
In the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, Mr. Yue Kwok Leung Tony, Dr. Stevenson Thomas Brian, Prof. 
Hu Shao Ming Herman, Mr. Fok Kai Kong Kenneth, Mr. Mong Tak Yeung David, Ms. Perry Ho Kim Fai and 
Mr. MOK Kwan Yat shall retire. Dr. Stevenson Thomas Brian and Prof. Hu Shao Ming Herman shall retire in 
accordance with Article 11(7)(a) and (b) of the Articles of Association respectively.  The other retiring directors 
shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.  The Board of Directors would 
like to express its sincere gratitude to Dr. Stevenson and Prof. Hu for their valuable contribution to the 
Federation during their tenure of office. 
 
Arrangements for acquisition of shares or debentures  
At no time during the year was the Federation, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the 
Federation to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Federation or any 
other company. 
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Business review 
The Federation recorded a total comprehensive income of HK$14.2 million for the year (2023: total comprehensive 
loss of HK$13.0 million) mainly due to the gains on fair value change of financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss (FVPL) of HK$6.8 million (2023: loss of HK$13 million) and designated fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) of HK$1.6 million (2023: loss of HK$1.5 million) respectively during the current 
year. 
 
The Federation has built up a net asset of HK$296 million (2023: HK$282 million) and cash balances of HK$59.1 
million (2023: HK$66.8 million) as at the reporting date of 31 March 2024. Together with the subvention from the 
Government of the HKSAR and the commercial sponsorship, the Directors are of the opinion that the Federation 
has sufficient liquidity and financial resources to fund its principal activities. 
 
With the lifting of the COVID-19 pandemic control measures in the beginning of 2023, sports activities and 
programs fully resumed in the financial year. The Federation will remain focused on sports development, and 
firmly believes that all these works to be done will eventually create value for our members, athletes and the 
community. 
 
The Federation has complied with the Olympic Charter and all applicable laws and regulations during the year. 
 
For a more comprehensive review of the Federation’s activities during the year, please refer to the message from 
the President and the closing remarks from the Hon. Secretary General in the Annual Report 2023-24. 
 
Management contracts 
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business 
of the Federation were entered into or existed during the year.  
 
Equity-linked agreements 
The Federation never enter into any equity-link agreements at anytime during the year. 
 
Permitted indemnity provisions 
Permitted indemnity provisions were in force during the year or are in force at the date of this report, for the benefit 
of a then director or a director of the Federation (whether made by the Federation or otherwise). 
 
Auditor 
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Forvis Mazars CPA Limited (formerly 
known as Mazars CPA Limited), Certified Public Accountants, as auditor of the Federation.   
 
 
Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by 
 
 
 
 
 
FOK Timothy Tsun Ting 
President 
4 October 2024 
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    2024  2023 
Continuing operations  Note  HK$  HK$ 
Income       
Subvention from The Government of Hong Kong Special 

Administrative Region 
 

3(a)  51,855,648  29,038,473 
Subsidy from Olympic Solidarity    3,105,869  2,472,188 
Sponsorship and donation:       
- from commercial parties    21,683,593  12,390,267 
- from officers and members     934,160  30,000 
Licensing income  3(b)  15,117,531  2,830,804 
Subscription from members    60,500  59,500 
Services income  3(b)  335,000  178,320 
Interest income from operation    1,485,881  703,756 
Income from investment fund  4  8,614,753  951,347 
Sundry income    104,390  99,600 
Exchange loss, net    (7,933)  (2,452) 
       
Total income    103,289,392  48,751,803 
       
Expenditure       
Staff costs  5  29,566,557  25,006,674 
Administration expenses    1,481,971  1,058,658 
Depreciation:       
- owned property, plant and equipment     1,264,588  932,134 
- right-of-use assets    146,337  138,915 
Local and overseas official meetings    230,435  397,467 
Publicity and promotion    1,091,431  445,019 
Programmes and activities  7  56,645,493  19,171,532 
Expenditure for investment fund  8  10,766  13,045,901 
Finance costs - Interest expense on lease liabilities     5,081  9,069 
       
Total expenditure    90,442,659  60,205,369 
       
Surplus (deficit) before taxation from continuing 

operations 
  

9  12,846,733  (11,453,566) 
Taxation  11  (286,921)  (27,433) 
    12,559,812  (11,480,999) 
Discontinued operations       
Results for the year from discontinued operations  23  -  - 
       
Surplus (deficit) for the year  00   12,559,812  (11,480,999) 
       
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax       
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss       

Changes in fair value of Designated FVOCI    1,603,500  (1,485,000) 
       
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year    14,163,312  (12,965,999) 
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  2024 2023 
 Note HK$ HK$ 
    
Attributable to:    
    
General fund- continuing operations    
Income  86,485,522 40,827,597  
Expenditure  (82,417,000) (39,650,925) 

    
  4,068,522 1,176,672 
    
General fund - discontinuing operations    
Income 23  - 8,537,719  
Expenditure 23  - (8,537,719) 
    
  - - 
    
Athletes fund    
Income  8,189,117 6,972,859  
Expenditure  (8,301,814) (7,535,976) 
    
  (112,697) (563,117) 
    
Investment fund    
Income 4  8,614,753 951,347  
Expenditure 8  (10,766) (13,045,901) 

    
  8,603,987 (12,094,554) 
    
Investment Revaluation Reserve Fund    
Other comprehensive income (loss)  1,603,500 (1,485,000) 

    
  14,163,312 (12,965,999) 
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  2024  2023  
 Note HK$  HK$  
Non-current assets      
Property, plant and equipment 12 2,141,451  2,190,731  
Right-of-use assets 13 100,033  231,525  
Designated FVOCI 14 20,914,500  19,311,000  
Financial assets at FVPL 15 230,097,214  223,300,071  

      
  253,253,198  245,033,327  
      
Current assets      
Receivables, deposits and prepayments 16 23,381,886  6,093,525  
Amount due from a related company 17 580,679  390,614  
Tax recoverable  -  797,283  
Cash and bank balances and bank deposits 18 59,091,363  66,761,329  
      
  83,053,928  74,042,751  
Assets classified as held for sale 22 -  9,587,414  
      
Total current assets  83,053,928  83,630,165  
      
Current liabilities      
Account payables and accruals  11,055,294  4,169,529  
Contract liabilities 19 3,029,412  -  
Advance subvention and sponsorship 20 19,734,564  25,561,300  
Amount due to a related company 17 1,394,372  497,281  
Deposits received  206,000  222,000  
Lease liabilities  21 106,004  144,170  
Deferred income 22 843,075  837,033  
Tax payable  286,921  -  
      
  36,655,642  31,431,313  
Liabilities classified as held for sale 23 -  9,587,414  
      
Total current liabilities  36,655,642  41,018,727  
      
Net current assets  46,398,286  42,611,438  
      
Total assets less current liabilities  299,651,484  287,644,765  
      
Non-current liabilities      
Advance subvention and sponsorship 20 2,288,546  4,366,884  
Lease liabilities  21 -  98,509  
Deferred income 22 1,147,225  1,126,971  
      
  3,435,771  5,592,364  
      
NET ASSETS  296,215,713  282,052,401  
      
Represented by:      
General fund  24,771,659  20,703,137  
Athletes fund  14,261,651  14,374,348  
Investment fund  262,359,983  253,755,996  
Investment revaluation reserve fund  (5,177,580)  (6,781,080)  
      
TOTAL FUNDS  296,215,713  282,052,401  

 
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4 October 2024 and signed on its behalf by 

    
    
    
    
FOK Timothy Tsun Ting  WONG Leung Wai  
President  Honorary Treasurer  
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  2024 2023 
 Note HK$ HK$ 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Cash (used in) generated from operations 24(a) (19,750,570) 10,295,655 
Income tax refunded (paid)  797,283 (939,966) 
Interest paid on lease liabilities  (5,081) (9,069) 
    
Net cash (used in) from operating activities  (18,958,368) 9,346,620 
    
INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Placement of time deposits with original maturity  
 over 3 months  - (12,506,918) 

Receipt of matured time deposits with original maturity  
over 3 months  12,506,918 18,612,064 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (1,215,308) (1,674,258) 
Dividend received  1,433,126 754,620 
Interest received  1,754,690 516,459 
    
Net cash from investing activities  14,479,426 5,701,967 
    
FINANCING ACTIVITY    
Lease payment 24(b) (151,520) (139,972) 
    
Net cash used in financing activity  (151,520) (139,972) 
    
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (4,630,462) 14,908,615 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  63,721,825 48,813,210 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year,  

represented by cash and bank balances 18 59,091,363 63,721,825 
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General 

 Fund 
Athletes 

 Fund 
Investment 

 Fund 

Investment 
Revaluation 

Reserve 
 Fund (non- 

recycling) Total Funds 
 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 
      
At 1 April 2022 19,526,465 14,937,465 265,850,550 (5,296,080) 295,018,400 
      
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 1,176,672 (563,117) (12,094,554) - (11,480,999) 
      
Other comprehensive income      
Changes in fair value of 

Designated FVOCI - - - (1,485,000) (1,485,000) 
      
Total comprehensive income 

(loss) for the year 1,176,672 (563,117) (12,094,554) (1,485,000) (12,965,999) 
      

At 31 March 2023 20,703,137 14,374,348 253,755,996 (6,781,080) 282,052,401 

      
      
At 1 April 2023 20,703,137 14,374,348 253,755,996 (6,781,080) 282,052,401 
      
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 4,068,522 (112,697) 8,603,987 - 12,559,812 
      
Other comprehensive income      
Changes in fair value of 

Designated FVOCI - - - 1,603,500 1,603,500 
      
Total comprehensive income 

(loss) for the year 4,068,522 (112,697) 8,603,987 1,603,500 14,163,312 
      
At 31 March 2024 24,771,659 14,261,651 262,359,983 (5,177,580) 296,215,713 

 
General Fund 
This Fund is for the general administration and operation of the Federation. 
 
Athletes Fund 
This Fund is for the support to athletes and the development of athletes retirement scheme (HKACEP) in Hong 
Kong. 
 
Investment Fund 
This Fund is through investment in the financial assets at FVPL, for the safeguard of the Federation's assets. 
 
Investment Revaluation Reserve Fund 
The Investment Revaluation Reserve Fund has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting 
policies adopted for revaluation of Designated FVOCI. 
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China (the “Federation”) is incorporated in Hong 
Kong with liability limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. The Federation’s registered office 
is located at 2/F, Olympic House, 1 Stadium Path, So Kon Po, Hong Kong. 
 
Every member of the Federation undertakes that if the Federation is wound up while he/she is a member, 
or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, to contribute to the assets of the Federation an 
amount not exceeding HK$100. 

 
The principal activities of the Federation are development and promotion of sports in Hong Kong. 
 

 
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES   

 
Basis of preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting 
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial 
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the 
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally 
accepted in Hong Kong and the Companies Ordinance. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies 
adopted in the 2023 financial statements. The adoption of the following new / revised HKFRSs that are 
relevant to the Federation and effective from the current year had no significant effects on the results and 
financial position of the Federation for the current and prior period.  
 
Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs 
The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that are 
relevant to the Federation: 

 
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a 

Single Transaction 
 
Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting Policies 
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than 
their significant accounting policies. 
 
The amendments have no effect on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the 
consolidated financial statements. Management has reviewed the disclosure of accounting policy 
information and considered it is consistent with the amendments. 
 
Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates 
The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes 
in accounting estimates. 
 
The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact on the financial statements. 
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China (the “Federation”) is incorporated in Hong 
Kong with liability limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. The Federation’s registered office 
is located at 2/F, Olympic House, 1 Stadium Path, So Kon Po, Hong Kong. 
 
Every member of the Federation undertakes that if the Federation is wound up while he/she is a member, 
or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, to contribute to the assets of the Federation an 
amount not exceeding HK$100. 

 
The principal activities of the Federation are development and promotion of sports in Hong Kong. 
 

 
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES   

 
Basis of preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting 
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial 
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the 
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally 
accepted in Hong Kong and the Companies Ordinance. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies 
adopted in the 2023 financial statements. The adoption of the following new / revised HKFRSs that are 
relevant to the Federation and effective from the current year had no significant effects on the results and 
financial position of the Federation for the current and prior period.  
 
Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs 
The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that are 
relevant to the Federation: 

 
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a 

Single Transaction 
 
Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting Policies 
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than 
their significant accounting policies. 
 
The amendments have no effect on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the 
consolidated financial statements. Management has reviewed the disclosure of accounting policy 
information and considered it is consistent with the amendments. 
 
Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates 
The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes 
in accounting estimates. 
 
The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact on the financial statements. 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs (Continued) 
Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction 
The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 
so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible 
temporary differences. 
 
The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact on the financial statements. 
 
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Federation is set out below. 
 
Basis of measurement 
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost, except for 
Designated FVOCI and financial assets at FVPL, which are measured at fair value as explained in the 
accounting policies set out below. 
 
Discontinued operation 
A discontinued operation is a component of the Federation that comprises operations and cash flows that 
can be clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the 
Federation. It represents a separate major line of business to dispose of a separate major line of business. 
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria 
to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned. 
 
Property, plant and equipment   
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly 
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs 
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred. 
 
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and 
equipment over their estimated useful lives from the date on which they are available for use and after 
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method at the rates as set out 
below. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or 
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately: 
 

Furniture and fixtures 15% 
Leasehold improvement 50% 
Machinery and equipment 20% 
Motor vehicles 20% 

 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised. 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
At the end of each reporting period, the Federation reviews internal and external sources of 
information to assess whether there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets may be impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be 
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the 
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Federation estimates the recoverable amount of the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.  
 
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of 
impairment loss is recognised as income in profit or loss immediately. 
 
Financial instruments 
Financial assets 
Recognition and derecognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Federation becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis. 
 
A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Federation’s contractual rights to future cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the Federation transfers the financial asset and either (a) the 
Federation transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) the 
Federation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset but it does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
Classification and measurement 
Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant financing component) are initially 
recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are initially 
measured at their transaction price. 
 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity investment 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”); or (iv) measured at 
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”). 
 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the Federation’s business model for 
managing the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial 
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Federation changes its 
business model for managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first 
day of the first annual reporting year following the change in the business model (the “reclassification 
date”). 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
At the end of each reporting period, the Federation reviews internal and external sources of 
information to assess whether there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets may be impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be 
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the 
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Federation estimates the recoverable amount of the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.  
 
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of 
impairment loss is recognised as income in profit or loss immediately. 
 
Financial instruments 
Financial assets 
Recognition and derecognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Federation becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis. 
 
A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Federation’s contractual rights to future cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the Federation transfers the financial asset and either (a) the 
Federation transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) the 
Federation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset but it does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
Classification and measurement 
Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant financing component) are initially 
recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are initially 
measured at their transaction price. 
 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity investment 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”); or (iv) measured at 
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”). 
 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the Federation’s business model for 
managing the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial 
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Federation changes its 
business model for managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first 
day of the first annual reporting year following the change in the business model (the “reclassification 
date”). 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Financial instruments (Continued) 
Financial assets (Continued) 
Classification and measurement (Continued) 
1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVPL: 

 
(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 

contractual cash flows; and 
(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate 
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from impairment, derecognition or 
through the amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.  

 
The Federation’s financial assets at amortised cost include receivables, deposits and prepayments, 
amount due from a related company and bank balances and cash. 
 

2) Designated FVOCI 
Upon initial recognition, the Federation may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent 
changes in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument that is neither held for trading nor 
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 
“Business Combinations” applies in other comprehensive income. The classification is determined 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

 
These equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value and are not subject to impairment. 
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of 
the cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and 
shall not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or 
loss is transferred directly to accumulated profits or losses. 
 
The Federation’s financial assets at Designated FVOCI include listed equity securities. 

 
3) Financial assets at FVPL 

These investments include financial assets that are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, 
including financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at 
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement in a business 
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise required to be 
measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit 
or loss, which does not include any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.  
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Financial instruments (Continued) 
Financial assets (Continued) 
Classification and measurement (Continued)  
3) Financial assets at FVPL (Continued) 

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:  
 
(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; 
(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which 

there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; or 
(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a designated and effective hedging 

instrument. 
 
Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or 
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from 
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different bases.  

 
The Federation’s financial assets at FVPL include multi-assets funds. 

 
Financial liabilities  
Recognition and derecognition 
Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Federation becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.  
 
A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the 
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.  
 
Classification and measurement 
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried 
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities. 
 
The Federation’s financial liabilities include account payables and accruals, advance subvention and 
sponsorship, amount due to a related company and deposit received. All financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, 
unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost. 
 
Impairment of financial assets  
The Federation recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that 
are measured at amortised cost to which the impairment requirements apply in accordance with 
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below, at each 
reporting date, the Federation measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to 
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, 
the Federation measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month 
ECL. 
  



Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended 31 March 2024 

 
Page 15 of 39 

 
 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Financial instruments (Continued) 
Financial assets (Continued) 
Classification and measurement (Continued)  
3) Financial assets at FVPL (Continued) 

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:  
 
(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; 
(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which 

there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; or 
(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a designated and effective hedging 

instrument. 
 
Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or 
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from 
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different bases.  

 
The Federation’s financial assets at FVPL include multi-assets funds. 

 
Financial liabilities  
Recognition and derecognition 
Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Federation becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.  
 
A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the 
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.  
 
Classification and measurement 
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried 
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities. 
 
The Federation’s financial liabilities include account payables and accruals, advance subvention and 
sponsorship, amount due to a related company and deposit received. All financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, 
unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost. 
 
Impairment of financial assets  
The Federation recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that 
are measured at amortised cost to which the impairment requirements apply in accordance with 
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below, at each 
reporting date, the Federation measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to 
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, 
the Federation measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month 
ECL. 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Financial instruments (Continued) 
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)  
Measurement of ECL 
ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) 
over the expected life of the financial instrument.  
 
For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the difference between the contractual cash 
flows that are due to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.  
 
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected 
to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the 
reporting date.  
 
Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s 
credit risk and loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance are recognised 
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount 
of the financial instrument. 
 
Definition of default 
The Federation considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk 
management purposes as historical experience indicates that the Federation may not receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets any of the following 
criteria. 
 
(i) information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor 

is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Federation, in full (without taking into account any 
collaterals held by the Federation); or 

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty. 
 

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk 
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Federation compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at 
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial 
recognition. In making this assessment, the Federation considers both quantitative and qualitative 
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking 
information that is available without undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information is taken 
into account in the assessment: 
 
 the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or interest on the due dates; 
 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external or internal 

credit rating (if available); 
 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and 
 actual or expected changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that 

have or may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to 
the Federation. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Federation assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument 
has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have 
low credit risk at the reporting date. 

  



Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended 31 March 2024 

 
Page 17 of 39 

 
 
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Financial instruments (Continued) 
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)  
Low credit risk 
Per HKFRS 9, a financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: 
 
(i) it has a low risk of default; 
(ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near 

term; and 
(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not 

necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. 
 
Credit-impaired financial asset 
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is 
credit-impaired include observable data about the following events: 
 
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower. 
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event. 
(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s 

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not 
otherwise consider. 

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation. 
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties. 
(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit 

losses. 
 
Write-off 
The Federation writes off a financial asset when the Federation has no reasonable expectations of 
recovering the contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. However, 
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the 
Federation’s procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. 
Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
Leases 
The Federation assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception of the contract. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration.  
 
As lessee 
The Federation applies the recognition exemption to short-term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease 
payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 
 
The Federation has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and accounts 
for each lease component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.  
 
The Federation accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease separately. The 
Federation allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative 
stand-alone price of the lease component.  
  



Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended 31 March 2024 

 
Page 17 of 39 

 
 
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Financial instruments (Continued) 
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)  
Low credit risk 
Per HKFRS 9, a financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: 
 
(i) it has a low risk of default; 
(ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near 

term; and 
(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not 

necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. 
 
Credit-impaired financial asset 
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is 
credit-impaired include observable data about the following events: 
 
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower. 
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event. 
(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s 

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not 
otherwise consider. 

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation. 
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties. 
(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit 

losses. 
 
Write-off 
The Federation writes off a financial asset when the Federation has no reasonable expectations of 
recovering the contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. However, 
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the 
Federation’s procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. 
Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
Leases 
The Federation assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception of the contract. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration.  
 
As lessee 
The Federation applies the recognition exemption to short-term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease 
payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 
 
The Federation has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and accounts 
for each lease component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.  
 
The Federation accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease separately. The 
Federation allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative 
stand-alone price of the lease component.  
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Leases (Continued) 
As lessee (Continued) 
Amounts payable by the Federation that do not give rise to a separate component are considered to be 
part of the total consideration that is allocated to the separately identified components of the contract. 
 
The Federation recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of the 
lease. 
 
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises 
 
(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;  
(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives 

received; 
(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Federation; and 
(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Federation in dismantling and removing the 

underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to 
the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are 
incurred to produce inventories. 

 
Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. 
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated 
useful lives of the right-of-use asset as follows: 
 
Office premises    Over the term of lease 
 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date of the contract.  
 
The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following 
payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the 
commencement date:  
 
(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable; 

and 
(b) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Federation 

exercising an option to terminate the lease. 
 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or where it is not 
readily determinable, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee. 
 
Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on 
the lease liability and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. 
 
Cash equivalents  
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid 
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash with maturity less than 3 months 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank overdrafts. For classification 
in the statement of financial position, cash equivalents represent assets similar in nature to cash and 
which are not restricted as to use. 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Revenue recognition 
Subvention and programme income 
Subvention and programme income, including sponsorship income are recognised when the Federation’s 
rights to receive payment have been established and the conditions have been fulfilled. 
 
Dividend income 
Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when the Federation’s rights to receive dividend is 
established, provided that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow 
to the Federation and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 
 
Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 
The nature of the goods or services provided by the Federation is as follows: 
 
Service A: Drug test service under discontinued operation. 
Service B: Entry fees for Olympic events and income from officers and members. 
Service C: Licensing income. 
 
Services A and B 
Identification of performance obligations 
At contract inception, the Federation assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a 
customer and identifies as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either: 
 
(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct; or 
(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the same pattern 

of transfer to the customer. 
 

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the following criteria are met: 
 
(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service either on its own or together with other resources 

that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or service is capable of being distinct); and 
(b) the Federation’s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately identifiable 

from other promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or service is distinct within 
the context of the contract). 

 
Timing of revenue recognition  
Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Federation satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a 
promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer 
obtains control of that asset. 
 
The Federation transfers control of a good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance 
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met: 
 
(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Federation’s 

performance as the Federation performs; 
(b) the Federation’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress) that 

the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or 
(c) the Federation’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Federation 

and the Federation has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Revenue recognition 
Subvention and programme income 
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performance as the Federation performs; 
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(c) the Federation’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Federation 

and the Federation has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Revenue recognition (Continued) 
Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 (Continued) 
Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)  
If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Federation satisfies the performance obligation 
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining when the 
transfer of control occurs, the Federation considers the concept of control and such indicators as legal 
title, physical possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and 
customer acceptance.  
 
Drug Test service is recognised at a point in time when the testing report is issued. 
 
Entry fees for Olympic events and income from officers and members are recognised at a point in time 
when the events conducted successfully for participants. 
 
Service C 
Licensing income 
The Federation has entered into a number of agreements with licensees under which the Federation 
grants the licensees rights to use the Federation’s intellectual property (being the Olympic emblem of the 
Federation). In return, the Federation is entitled to fixed annual payments, which are stated in the 
agreements. 
 
HKFRS 15 requires an entity to determine whether an entity’s promise to grant a license is a right to 
access the entity’s intellectual property (with consideration being recognised as revenue over time) or a 
right to use the entity’s intellectual property (with consideration being recognised as revenue at a particular 
point in time). Based on the specific requirements under HKFRS 15, an entity’s promise to grant a license 
is a right to access the entity’s intellectual property when all of the following criteria are met: 
 
(a) the contract requires, or the customer reasonably expects, that the entity will undertake activities 

that significantly affect the intellectual property to which the customer has rights; 
(b) the rights granted by the licence directly expose the customer to any positive or negative effects 

of the entity’s activities identified in (a) above; and 
(c) those activities do not result in the transfer of a good or a service to the customer as those 

activities occur. 
 
Having assessed the terms of the related agreements and the specific facts and circumstances, the 
directors concluded that all of the abovementioned criteria are satisfied and concluded that the licensing 
income should be recognised over time.  
 
Interest income 
Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest method. For financial 
assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the 
gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount 
net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets. 

  



Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended 31 March 2024 

 
Page 21 of 39 

 
 
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Contract assets and contract liabilities 
If the Federation grants the license to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before 
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a 
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an amount of 
consideration that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service to the customer, the 
contract is presented as a contract liability when the payment is made or the payment is due 
(whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Federation’s right to consideration that is unconditional or 
only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due. 
 
For the business of Service C, in accordance with the standard payment schedules of the Federation, 
payments are normally not due or received. However, for such transactions, revenue is recognised over 
time and therefore, a contract asset is recognised until it becomes a receivable or payments are received. 
During that period, any significant financing components, if applicable, will be included in the contract 
asset and recognised as interest income.  When the Federation, in accordance with the payment 
schedules, receives the whole or some of the contractual payments before the services are performed 
(i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Federation recognises a contract liability 
until it is recognised as revenue. During that period, any significant financing components, if applicable, 
will be included in the contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the interest expense is 
eligible for capitalisation. 
 
Employee benefits 
Short term employee benefits  
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and 
gratuity are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where 
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their 
present values. 
 
Defined contribution plans  
The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme are recognised as an expense 
in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Federation in 
an independently administered fund. 
 
Government grants  
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense 
item, it is recognised as income over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the 
costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a 
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset 
to match the depreciation charge. 

 
Foreign currency translation 
The financial statements are presented in the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the Federation's 
functional and presentation currency. 
 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.  
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Contract assets and contract liabilities 
If the Federation grants the license to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before 
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a 
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an amount of 
consideration that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service to the customer, the 
contract is presented as a contract liability when the payment is made or the payment is due 
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only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due. 
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(i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Federation recognises a contract liability 
until it is recognised as revenue. During that period, any significant financing components, if applicable, 
will be included in the contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the interest expense is 
eligible for capitalisation. 
 
Employee benefits 
Short term employee benefits  
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and 
gratuity are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where 
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their 
present values. 
 
Defined contribution plans  
The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme are recognised as an expense 
in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Federation in 
an independently administered fund. 
 
Government grants  
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense 
item, it is recognised as income over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the 
costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a 
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset 
to match the depreciation charge. 

 
Foreign currency translation 
The financial statements are presented in the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the Federation's 
functional and presentation currency. 
 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.  
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Taxation 
The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the end of the reporting period. 

 
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting 
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.  

 
The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year 
when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.  
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised. 
 
Related parties 
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Federation.  
 
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Federation if that person:  

(i) has control or joint control over the Federation;  
(ii) has significant influence over the Federation; or  
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Federation.  

 
(b) An entity is related to the Federation if any of the following conditions applies:  

(i) one entity is a subsidiary, an associate or joint venture of the other entity. 
(ii) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

Federation or an entity related to the Federation.  
(iii) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). 
(iv) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 

management personnel of the entity. 
(v) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel 

services to the Federation. 
 
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or 
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:  
 
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;  
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and  
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.  
 
In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture 
includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.  
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Critical accounting estimates and judgements  
Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made by the management in 
the preparation of the financial statements. They affect the application of the Federation’s accounting 
policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They 
are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where 
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision and future 
periods, in case the revision also affects future periods. 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty  
 
Loss allowance for ECL 
The Federation’s management estimates the loss allowance for amount due from related companies and 
contract assets by using various inputs and assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss rate. 
The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is based on the Federation’s historical 
information, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting 
period. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the 
carrying amount of for amount due from related companies and contract assets. Details of the key 
assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in note 27 to the financial statements. 
 
Future changes in HKFRSs 
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new / 
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which the Federation has not early adopted. 
The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the new / revised HKFRSs in future periods will have 
any material impact on the results of the Federation. 
 
 

3. SUBVENTION AND INCOME 
 
3(a) Subvention from the government of Hong Kong special administrative region for continuing 

operation  
    
 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
    
Subvention from Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau 

(“CSTB”) 30,237,276 
 

26,088,693 
Subvention from Arts and Sport Development Fund 16,467,339  - 
Subvention from Leisure and Culture Services Department 

(“LCSD”) 5,151,033 
 

2,949,780 
    
 51,855,648  29,038,473 
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
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3. SUBVENTION AND INCOME (CONTINUED) 
 

3(b) Services income and licensing income 
 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Service charges -  12,000 
Entry fee 335,000  166,320 
    
 335,000  178,320 
    
Doping test services under discontinued operation  -  125,280 
 
The above services income are recognised at a point in time and the licensing income of HK$15,117,531 
(2023: HK$2,830,804) is recognised over time. 
 
 

4. INCOME FROM INVESTMENT FUND 
 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Dividend income 1,618,780  871,830 
Interest income 198,830  79,517 
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL 6,797,143  - 
    
 8,614,753  951,347 
 
 

5. STAFF COSTS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Salaries, allowances and gratuities 28,592,232  24,152,994 
Contributions to defined contribution plans 730,245  623,498 
Employee benefits expenses 244,080  230,182 
    
 29,566,557  25,006,674 

 
 
6. TRANSACTIONS WITH HIGH PAY STAFF 
 

The high pay staff represents the top 3 tiers of the Federation. During the year, the Federation had the 
following transactions with its high pay staffs. Annual remuneration includes salaries, allowance, 
gratuities, and contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme. The amounts have been 
rounded to the nearest thousand. 
 

Tier Ranking 
Annual Remuneration 

(Number of staff) 
  2024  2023 
  HK$  HK$ 
     
First tier Director Grade  4,361,000   (2)  3,796,000   (2) 
Second tier Manager Grade 3,734,000   (4)  3,797,000   (4) 
Third tier Deputy manager Grade 6,000,000   (9)  6,354,000 (11) 
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7. PROGRAMMES AND ACTIVITIES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
 

Analysis of the expenditures of the programmes and activities for the year is as follows: 
 
 2024 2023 
 HK$ HK$ 
   
Multi-sports games   

2024 Winter Youth Olympic Games, Gangwon 130,447 - 
The 19th Asian Games, Hangzhou 21,995,816 - 
2023 East Asian Youth Games, Ulaanbaatar 2,733,077 - 
2023 World Beach Games (cancelled) 12,743 - 

   
 24,872,083 - 
   
Major events   
   Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards 3,657,953 2,893,474 
   Festival of Sport 4,216,336 3,461,683 
   Olympic Day 3,710,392 1,640,381 
   
 11,584,681 7,995,538 
   
Education programmes   
   Olympism Exhibition and Carnival 599,196  573,324  
   Olympism Education Programme 400,482  401,983  
   Others 215,356  100,186  
   
 1,215,034 1,075,493 
   
Olympic movement   
   Hangzhou Asian Games Publicity & Promotion Campaign 2,655,085 - 
   Youth Olympian Programme  2,319,980 497,281 
   Others 1,097,088 1,085,181 
   
 6,072,153 1,582,462 
   
Membership activities and related expenses   
   Incentive Awards 3,601,222  1,377,060  
   Christmas Party and Others 1,951,752  302,448  
   
 5,552,974 1,679,508 
   
Support to members for sport development   
   Scholarship for athletes 2,658,671 2,135,457 
   
Retired athletes programmes 4,636,827 4,340,274 
   
Corporate governance 53,070 362,800 
   
 56,645,493 19,171,532 
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8. EXPENDITURE FOR INVESTMENT FUND 

    
 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Bank charge 10,766  9,647 
Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL -  13,036,254 
    
 10,766  13,045,901 

 
 
9. SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
 

This is stated after charging:    
 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Auditor’s remuneration 115,760  110,250 
Depreciation:    
 - property, plant and equipment  1,264,588  932,134 
 - right-of-use assets 146,337  138,915 
Short-term leases expenses -  720,000 
 
 

10. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS  
 

The following disclosures are presented pursuant to section 383 of the Companies Ordinance. 
 

(a) Directors’ remuneration 
 

There is no directors’ remuneration for the year (2023: Nil). 
 

(b) Loans, quasi loans and credit transactions in favour of a director of the Federation 
 
There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors of the Federation that 
were entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023. 

 
(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts 

 
After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no transactions, arrangements and contracts 
of significance in relation to the Federation’s business to which the Federation was a party and in 
which a director of the Federation had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2023: Nil). 
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11. TAXATION 

 
For the year ended 31 March 2024, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the Company, being the qualifying 
corporation, is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in which the first 
HK$2 million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% while the assessable profits above HK$2 million 
are taxed at 16.5% (2023: Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Federation has 
incurred a loss for taxation purpose for the year). 
    
 2024 2023  
 HK$ HK$  
Current tax    
Hong Kong Profits Tax:    
    Current year 286,921 -  
    Under provision in prior year - 27,433  
    
 286,921 27,433  
 
 
 2024  2023 
Reconciliation of income tax expense HK$  HK$ 
    
Surplus (deficit) before taxation 12,846,733  (11,453,566) 
    
Income tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) 2,119,711   (1,889,838) 
Non-deductible expenses 1,309  2,152,547 
Tax exempt revenue (1,666,605)   (273,092) 
Unrecognised temporary differences 57,851   (41,855) 
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (57,345)  - 
Tax effect of the two-tiered profits tax rates (165,000)  - 
Unrecognised tax losses -   52,238  
Under provision in prior years -   27,433  
Tax concession (3,000)  - 
    
Income tax expense for the year 286,921  27,433 
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

      
 Furniture 

 and 
 fixtures 

Leasehold 
 improvement 

Machinery 
 and 

 equipment Motor vehicles Total 
 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 
Reconciliation of carrying amount      

– Year ended 31 March 2023      
At beginning of year 52,953 - 1,239,513 302,302 1,594,768 
Additions - 562,200 1,449,658 - 2,011,858 
Depreciation (19,012) (281,100) (691,198) (75,575) (1,066,885) 
Assets classified as held for sale - (53,010) (296,000) - (349,010) 
      
At the end of the reporting period  33,941 228,090 1,701,973 226,727 2,190,731 

      
Reconciliation of carrying amount  

– Year ended 31 March 2024      
At beginning of year 33,941 228,090 1,701,973 226,727 2,190,731 
Additions 50,800 371,530 792,978 - 1,215,308 
Depreciation (23,763) (413,855) (751,394) (75,576) (1,264,588) 
      

At the end of the reporting period 60,978 185,765 1,743,557 151,151 2,141,451 

      
At 1 April 2023      
Cost 247,211 1,219,230 3,346,634 377,877 5,190,952 
Accumulated depreciation (213,270) (991,140) (1,644,661) (151,150) (3,000,221) 
      

Net carrying amount 33,941 228,090 1,701,973 226,727 2,190,731 

      
At 31 March 2024      
Cost 298,011 1,590,760 4,139,612 377,877 6,406,260 
Accumulated depreciation (237,033) (1,404,995) (2,396,055) (226,726) (4,264,809) 
      

Net carrying amount 60,978 185,765 1,743,557 151,151 2,141,451 
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13.    RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 

  

 
Office 

premises 
 HK$ 
Reconciliation of carrying amount  

– year ended 31 March 2023  

At beginning of the year  370,440 
Depreciation (138,915) 
  
At the end of the reporting period 231,525 
  
Reconciliation of carrying amount  

– year ended 31 March 2024  

At beginning of the year  231,525 
Additions 14,845 
Depreciation (146,337) 
  
At the end of the reporting period 100,033 
  
At 31 March 2023  
Cost  681,010  
Accumulated depreciation  (449,485) 
  
Net carrying amount 231,525 
  
At 31 March 2024  
Cost 695,855 
Accumulated depreciation (595,822) 
  
Net carrying amount 100,033 

 
The Federation mainly leases office premises for its daily operations with 5 years (2023: 5 years) lease 
term. 
 
Restrictions or covenants  
The leases impose a restriction that, unless the approval is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset 
can only be used by the Federation and the Federation is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying 
assets. The Federation is also required to keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the 
properties in their original condition at the end of the lease. 

 
Commitments under leases 
There was no commitment under leases at 31 March 2024 and 2023.  
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14. DESIGNATED FVOCI 

    
 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Equity securities, listed in Hong Kong    
 HSBC Holdings PLC 18,345,000  15,960,000 
   Hang Seng Bank Limited 2,569,500  3,351,000 
    
  20,914,500  19,311,000 
    

The fair values of the listed securities are determined based on the quoted market bid price available on 
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. 

 
The Federation irrevocably designated all its listed equity securities as Designated FVOCI because 
these equity securities represent investments that the Federation intends to hold for long term for 
strategic purposes. 

 
 

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 
     
  2024  2023 
  HK$  HK$ 
     
Multi-assets Funds  230,097,214  223,300,071 

 
 
16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 
 

  2024  2023 
 Note HK$  HK$ 
     
Subvention and sponsorship receivables  17,415,087  494,427 
Dividend receivables  724,267  538,613 
Interest receivables  231,525  301,504 
Deposit  3,000  - 
Other receivables  302,280  2,336 
Prepayments  2,954,697  2,997,355 
     
  21,630,856  4,334,235 
Contract assets 16(a) 1,751,030  1,759,290 
     
  23,381,886  6,093,525 

 
 The carrying amounts of receivables, deposits and prepayments approximate their respective fair values 

at the reporting date. 
  



Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended 31 March 2024 

 
Page 31 of 39 

 
 
16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
16(a) Contract Assets 
 
 The movements (excluding those arising from increases and decreases both occurred within the same 

year) of contract assets from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows: 
    
 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
At the beginning of the reporting period 1,759,290  1,752,523 
Recognition of revenue 1,759,290  1,752,523 
Instalments received during the year (1,751,030)  (1,752,523) 
Exchange realignment -  6,767 
    
At the end of the reporting period 1,751,030  1,759,290 
    

 At the 31 March 2024, no contract assets are expected to be recovered after more than 12 months. 
 
 
17. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED COMPANIES 
 
 The amounts due from (to) related companies with common directors of the Federation are unsecured, 

interest-free and have no fixed repayment term. 
 
 
18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND BANK DEPOSITS 

 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Time deposits with original maturity over 3 months -  12,506,918 
Short-term time deposits 32,261,026  21,531,105 
Cash and bank balances 26,830,337  32,723,306 
    
 59,091,363  66,761,329 
    
Less: Time deposits with original maturity over 3 months -  (12,506,918) 
    
 59,091,363  54,254,411 
    
Cash and cash equivalent attributable to discontinued 

operations (Note 24) - 
 

9,467,414 
    
Cash and cash equivalents as shown in statements of cash 
flows 59,091,363 

 
63,721,825 

    
Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. 
 
Short-term time deposits are made between two and three months depending on the immediate cash 
requirement of the Federation, and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates. 
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19. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 
 

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and decreases both occurred within the same 
year) of contract liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as 
follows: 
  
   2024 
   HK$ 
    
At the beginning of the reporting period   - 
Receipt of advances or recognition of receivables   3,029,412 
    
At end of the reporting period   3,029,412 

 
At 31 March 2024, the contract liabilities that are expected to be recognised as revenue within one 
year. 

 
 
20. ADVANCE SUBVENTION AND SPONSORSHIP 
 
 The balance of advance subvention and sponsorship under current liabilities as at the end of the reporting 

period comprised of: 
 

 2024 2023 
 HK$ HK$ 
   
Subvention from CSTB 10,093,561 14,909,350 
Subvention from LCSD 7,074,543 7,335,427 
Subsidy from International Olympic Solidarity 678,600 173,523 
Sponsorship 1,887,860 3,143,000 
   
 19,734,564 25,561,300 

 
 The balance of advance subvention and sponsorship under non-current liabilities as at the end of the 

reporting period comprised of: 
 

 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Subvention from CSTB  2,288,546  4,366,884 

 
 
21. LEASE LIABILITIES 

  2024  2023 
  HK$  HK$ 
     
Current portion  106,004  144,170  
Non-current portion  -  98,509  
     
  106,004  242,679 
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22. DEFERRED INCOME 
 
 Deferred income represented unamortised government grants relating to property, plant and equipment 

at the reporting date. 
 

 2024  2023 
 HK$  HK$ 
    
Current portion 1,990,300  1,964,004 
Non-current portion (843,075)  (837,033) 
    
 1,147,225  1,126,971 

 
 
23. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
 

With the support from the Government, the Anti-Doping Organization of Hong Kong, China Limited 
(the "ADOHK") was incorporated to take up all the business, assets and liabilities of the Hong Kong 
Anti-Doping Committee (the "HKADC") from the Federation on 1 April 2023. Thus, the Federation 
ceased to have its control over the HKADC by 1 April 2023 and therefore the carrying amount related 
to the assets and liabilities of HKADC were transferred to ADOHK on 1 April 2023. As at 31 March 
2023, HKADC was classified as disposal group held for sale and as a discontinued operations. 
 
The results relating to the discontinued operations of HKADC for the year ended 31 March 2023 are 
summarised as follows: 
   2023 
   HK$ 
Income    
Recurrent subvention from CSTB   10,800,000 
Less: Unspent balance   (2,422,350) 
    
   8,377,650 
Deferred income for property, plant and equipment   34,789 
Drug test services income   125,280 
    
   8,537,719 
Expenditure    
Staff costs   4,753,102 
Administration expenses   1,217,604 
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment   134,751 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   349,010 
Programmes and activities - Anti-doping programmes   2,083,252 
    
   8,537,719 
    
Results before taxation from discontinued operations   - 
    
Taxation   - 
    
Results for the year from discontinued operations   - 
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23. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 

The following are the assets and liabilities in relation to the discontinued operations of HKADC as at 
31 March 2023: 

 
    2023 
    HK$ 
Assets classified as held for sale      
Deposits and prepayments    120,000 
Cash and bank balances and bank deposits    9,467,414 
     
    9,587,414 
     
Liabilities directly associated with assets 

classified as held for sale    
 

Accruals    157,329 
Account Payable to the Government    4,118,745 
Advance subvention     
- Balance of recurrent subvention     678,968 
- Balance of one-off allocation     4,632,372 
     
    9,587,414 
     
Net Assets    - 
     

 
The net cash flows incurred relating to the discontinued operations of HKADC for the year ended 31 
March 2023 were as follows:  
    
   2023 
   HK$ 
    
Operating activities   2,721,378 
Investing activities   4,163,092 
Financing activities   - 
    
Net cash flow    6,884,470 
    

 
  



Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended 31 March 2024 

 
Page 35 of 39 

 
 

24. CASH FLOWS INFORMATION 
 
24(a) Cash (used in) generated from operations 

    
  2024 2023 
  HK$ HK$ 
    
Surplus (deficit) before taxation  12,846,733 (11,453,566) 
    
Adjustments for:    
 Depreciation:    
  - owned property, plant and equipment   1,264,588 1,066,885 
  - right-of-use assets  146,337 138,915 
 Interest expenses on lease liabilities  5,081 9,069 
 Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL  (6,797,143) 13,036,254 
 Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  - 349,010 
 Dividend income  (1,618,780) (871,830) 
 Interest income  (1,684,711) (783,273) 
    
Operating cash flow before working capital changes  4,162,105 1,491,464 
 Receivables, deposits and prepayments  (17,052,686) (276,627) 
 Amounts due from / to related companies  707,026 2,321,163 
 Account payables and accruals  2,609,691 7,178,464 
 Contract liabilities  3,029,412 - 
 Advance subvention and sponsorship  (13,216,414) (1,106,347) 
 Deposits (paid) received  (16,000) 16,000 
 Deferred income   26,296 671,538 
    
Net cash (used in) generated from operations  (19,750,570) 10,295,655 
    

 
24(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activity 
 

Details of the changes in the Federation’s liabilities from financing activity are as follows: 
     
    Lease 

liabilities 
    HK$ 
     
At 1 April 2022    382,651 
Net cash flows    (139,972) 
     
At 31 March 2023    242,679 
     
At 1 April 2023     242,679 
Addition    14,845 
Net cash flows    (151,520) 
     
At 31 March 2024    106,004 
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25. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 

 
During the year, the Federation received goods and services which were recognised as expenses 
with an aggregate cost value of HK$13,950,103 (2023: HK$3,781,162), as a result of sponsorship and 
government grants contributed in kind. 
 

 
26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

 
In addition to the transactions / information disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, during the 
year, the Federation had the following significant transactions with its related parties: 
 

Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2024  2023 
  HK$  HK$ 
     
Management Company of 

Olympic House Limited 
(Company with common 
directors) 

Venue and equipment rental 
expenses (20,853) 

 
-(35,842) 

Sundry expenses (76,440)  (22,750) 
Rental expenses -  (4,000) 
Tea refreshment service expenses (4,560)  (----(4,445) 
Car park rental expenses -  (260) 

 Office management fee (156,600)  (149,040) 
 Telephone handset fee (7,200)  - 
 Sundry income - driver costs 104,130  99,480 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

 
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the Federation’s 
operations. The Federation considers that its exposures to interest rate risk were insignificant at the end 
of the reporting period, as there were no interest-bearing borrowing and the impact on interest rate 
changes of bank deposits were not significant. As a result, the main risks associated with these financial 
assets and financial liabilities are price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Federation does not have 
written risk management policies and guidelines. However, the Federation generally adopts conservative 
strategies on its risk management and limits the its exposure to these risks to a minimum. 
  

SF&OC Sports Legacy Company 
Limited (Company with common 
directors) 

Service fee and expenses for 
Sports Legacy Scheme (2,319,980) 

 
(497,281) 

    
     
Hong Kong Olympic Fan Club 

Limited (Company with common 
directors) 

Service fee and expenses for 
Olympic movement (1,088,424) 

 
(724,605) 
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Price risk  
The Federation’s Designated FVOCI are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period 
with reference to the quoted price. Therefore, the Federation is exposed to price risk and the 
management monitors the price movements and takes appropriate actions when required. 
 
At the end of the reporting period, if the equity price to the valuation model had been 10% (2023: 10%) 
higher / lower while all other variables were held constant, the Federation’s net surplus / deficit would 
have been unaffected since all the equity investments are classified as Designated FVOCI. Investment 
Revaluation Reserve Fund (non-recycling) deficit would be decreased / increased by HK$2.09 million 
(2023: HK$1.93 million) as a result of changes in fair value of Designated FVOCI.  
 
In addition, the Federation’s financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the end of each 
reporting period with reference to the quoted price. Therefore, the Federation is also exposed to price 
risk in this respect. 
 
Sensitivity analysis: 

 

 

 Increase (Decrease) in surplus and 
increase (decrease) 

in net assets of the Federation  
 

    

10% 
 increase in  

market price  

10%  
decrease in 

market price 
     HK$  HK$ 
        
As at 31 March 2024     23,010,000  (23,010,000) 

 
 

 

 Decrease (Increase)  
in deficit and increase (decrease)  

in net assets of the Federation  
 

    

10% 
 increase in  

market price  

10%  
decrease in 

market price 
     HK$  HK$ 
        
As at 31 March 2023     22,330,000  (22,330,000) 

 
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably possible changes in the 
stock market index or other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the reporting period and 
had been applied to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed that 
the fair values of the Federation’s investments would change in accordance with the historical 
correlation with the relevant stock market index or the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk 
variables, and that all other variables remain constant. The stated changes represent management’s 
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk 
variables over the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed 
on the same basis for 2023. 
  



Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year ended 31 March 2024 

 
Page 37 of 39 

 
 

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Price risk  
The Federation’s Designated FVOCI are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period 
with reference to the quoted price. Therefore, the Federation is exposed to price risk and the 
management monitors the price movements and takes appropriate actions when required. 
 
At the end of the reporting period, if the equity price to the valuation model had been 10% (2023: 10%) 
higher / lower while all other variables were held constant, the Federation’s net surplus / deficit would 
have been unaffected since all the equity investments are classified as Designated FVOCI. Investment 
Revaluation Reserve Fund (non-recycling) deficit would be decreased / increased by HK$2.09 million 
(2023: HK$1.93 million) as a result of changes in fair value of Designated FVOCI.  
 
In addition, the Federation’s financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the end of each 
reporting period with reference to the quoted price. Therefore, the Federation is also exposed to price 
risk in this respect. 
 
Sensitivity analysis: 

 

 

 Increase (Decrease) in surplus and 
increase (decrease) 

in net assets of the Federation  
 

    

10% 
 increase in  

market price  

10%  
decrease in 

market price 
     HK$  HK$ 
        
As at 31 March 2024     23,010,000  (23,010,000) 

 
 

 

 Decrease (Increase)  
in deficit and increase (decrease)  

in net assets of the Federation  
 

    

10% 
 increase in  

market price  

10%  
decrease in 

market price 
     HK$  HK$ 
        
As at 31 March 2023     22,330,000  (22,330,000) 

 
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably possible changes in the 
stock market index or other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the reporting period and 
had been applied to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed that 
the fair values of the Federation’s investments would change in accordance with the historical 
correlation with the relevant stock market index or the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk 
variables, and that all other variables remain constant. The stated changes represent management’s 
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk 
variables over the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed 
on the same basis for 2023. 
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Credit risk 
The credit risk of the Federation is primarily attributable to financial assets at FVPL, receivables, deposits, 
contract assets, amounts due from related companies and bank balances and time deposits. 
 
The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the statement of financial position represents the 
Federation’s exposure to credit risk without taking into account the value of any collateral held or other 
credit enhancements.  
 
Financial assets at FVPL 
The Federation invests only in securities with good credit rating counterparties, as such the risk of default 
is also considered minimal. 
 
Receivables, deposits, contract assets and amounts due from related companies 
The Federation considers that the receivables, deposits, contract assets and amounts due from related 
companies have low credit risk based on the counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash 
flow obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment on receivables measured on 12-month 
ECL and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. 
 
In estimating the ECL of receivables, deposits, contract assets and amounts due from related companies, 
the Federation has taken into account the historical actual credit loss experience over the past years and 
the financial position of the counterparties, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific to the 
debtors and general economic conditions of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating 
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case. The 
management of the Federation considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant after taking 
into account the financial position and credit quality of the counterparties. There was no change in the 
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the year. 
 
Bank balances and time deposits 
The Federation considers that the exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances and time deposits is 
limited because the counterparties are banks with sound credit rating, for which the Federation considers 
to have low credit risk. 
 
Liquidity risk 
The Federation’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that 
the Federation maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity 
requirements in the short and longer term. The Federation’s financial liabilities at the end of reporting 
period based on contractual undiscounted cash flow are all due for payment within one year or on demand.  
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Fair value measurements 
The carrying value of financial instruments are measured at fair value at 31 March 2024 across the three 
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value 
measurement categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. The levels are defined as follows: 
 
- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities 

that the Federation can access at the measurement date; 

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
The fair value of all the Federation’s Designated FVOCI and financial assets at FVPL are measured 
based on Level 1 inputs. During the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no transfers between Level 
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. 
 

 
28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 

The objectives of the Federation’s capital management are to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern for its development and promotion of sports objectives. The Federation manages its 
cumulated funds available and makes adjustments to these funds in light of changes in economic 
conditions and business strategies. To manage the funds, the Federation may adjust the use of its 
reserve or raise fund and repay debts.  
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Fair value measurements 
The carrying value of financial instruments are measured at fair value at 31 March 2024 across the three 
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value 
measurement categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. The levels are defined as follows: 
 
- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities 

that the Federation can access at the measurement date; 

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
The fair value of all the Federation’s Designated FVOCI and financial assets at FVPL are measured 
based on Level 1 inputs. During the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no transfers between Level 
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. 
 

 
28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 

The objectives of the Federation’s capital management are to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern for its development and promotion of sports objectives. The Federation manages its 
cumulated funds available and makes adjustments to these funds in light of changes in economic 
conditions and business strategies. To manage the funds, the Federation may adjust the use of its 
reserve or raise fund and repay debts.  
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Annex 1: SF&OC's Committees and  
Affiliated Companies

附錄一：港協暨奧委會委員會及關聯公司

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Co-opted Member
增補委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Director of Studies
課程總監

Member
委員

Co-opted Member
增補委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Dr. T. Brian STEVENSON

Mr. Derrick L. W. WONG

Dr. Karl C. KWOK
Mr. Tony K. L. YUE
Mr. TONG Wai Lun
Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG
Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG
Mr. Philip K. Y. MOK 
(since 4 May 2023)

Prof. William W. C. LEUNG

The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK

Dr. David T. Y. MONG

Dr. Michael TSE

Prof. Herman S. M. HU
Ms. Fay K. F. HO
Dr. Julian W. CHANG
Ms. Vivian W. S. LEE 
Mr. Edmond C. Y. HUNG
Prof. Ada LI
The Hon. Kenneth Y. W. LEUNG

Ms. WAN Mei
Ms. Annie H. Y. WONG

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG

Mr. Derrick L. W. WONG

Mr. Tony K. L. YUE
Mr. TONG Wai Lun
The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK
Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG
Mr. WONG Po Kee 
Ms. Fay K. F. HO
Mr. Philip K. Y. MOK 
(since 4 May 2023)

Mr. WONG Kam Po

Ms. SZE Hang Yu

Ms. Hayley V. H. M. CHAN
Ms. Angel H. Y. WONG
Mr. WU Siu Hong
Ms. CHAN Ho Ling
Mr. LEE Chun Ho
Mr. TANG Hon Sing
Mr. WONG Chun Ting
Mr. CHEUNG Ka Long

Dr. Karl C. KWOK

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG

Mr. Tony K. L. YUE
Prof. Herman S. M. HU
Mr. TONG Wai Lun
The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK
Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG
Mr. WONG Po Kee
Mr. Philip K. Y. MOK 
(since 4 May 2023)
Mr. TANG King Shing 
Mr. Edward LIU 
Mr. William LI

施文信博士

黃良威先生

郭志樑博士
余國樑先生
湯偉倫先生
王敏超先生
楊祖賜先生
莫君逸先生 
(自2023年5月4日起)

梁永祥教授

霍啟剛議員

蒙德揚博士

謝家德博士

胡曉明教授
何劍暉女士
張維醫生
李穎詩女士
洪楚英先生
李慧慈教授
梁毓偉議員

溫薇女士
王慶宜女士

楊祖賜先生

黃良威先生

余國樑先生
湯偉倫先生
霍啟剛議員
王敏超先生
黃寶基先生
何劍暉女士
莫君逸先生 
(自2023年5月4日起)

黃金寶先生

施幸余女士

陳晞文女士
黃曉盈女士
胡兆康先生
陳浩鈴女士
李振豪先生
鄧漢昇先生
黃鎮廷先生
張家朗先生

郭志樑博士

楊祖賜先生

余國樑先生
胡曉明教授
湯偉倫先生
霍啟剛議員
王敏超先生
黃寶基先生
莫君逸先生 
(自2023年5月4日起)
鄧竟成先生
劉洋先生
李煒林先生

Standing Committees
常設委員會

1.	 Finance and Investment Committee
	 財務及投資委員會

4.	 Hong Kong Olympic Academy
	 香港奧林匹克學院

2.	 Administration and Personnel Committee
	 行政及人事委員會

5.	 Athletes Committee
	 運動員委員會

3.	 Membership Affairs Committee
	 會員事務委員會
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Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Vice-Chairperson
副主席

Member
委員

Dr. Karl C. KWOK

Mr. WONG Po Kee

Mr. Tony K. L. YUE 
Ms. Fay K. F. HO
Ms. Angel H. Y. WONG
Mr. Benjamin T. C. HUNG 
(till 23 October 2023)
Ms. Camay K. M. LEE 
(since 24 October 2023)
Dr. Diana LI  
(till 23 October 2023)
Mr. Rod LAI 
(since 24 October 2023)
Mr. Patrick LI
Mr. YEUNG Wing Sun A.N.W.
Mr. Arnold C. L. CHUNG

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG

Mr. TONG Wai Lun

Dr. Karl C. KWOK
Prof. Herman S. M. HU
Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG
Mr. WONG Po Kee
Ms. Fay K. F. HO
Dr. Charleston C. S. SIN
Dr. Johnnie Casire C. K. CHAN
Ms. WAN Mei

Prof. Herman S. M. HU 

Dr. Karl C. KWOK

Mr. Tony K. L. YUE
The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK
Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG
Mr. Philip K. Y. MOK 
(since 4 May 2023)
Mr. Paul C. W. CHENG 
(till 23 October 2023)
Ms. Candy K. Y. NIP 
(since 24 October 2023)
Ms. Hayley V. H. M. CHAN
Mr. Nick H. F. CHAN
Mr. CHENG Ka Ho
Mr. Cowen B. CHIU
Mr. Charles L. C. HO
Dr. Adam Y. K. LEE 
Mr. Wesley W. H. WAN
Ms. Esther MA
Mr. YAU Wai Keung
Mr. WONG Chun Long

Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG

Prof. Herman S. M. HU

Mr. WONG Po Kee
Ms. Fay K. F. HO
Mr. Benjamin T. C. HUNG 
(till 23 October 2023)
Ms. Camay K. M. LEE 
(since 24 October 2023)
Mr. Johnny W. M. WOO
Mr. YEUNG Wai Kei
Dr. Ringo LEE
Mr. CHENG Ka Ho
Ms. CHAN Ho Ling
Ms. Loretta C. M. FONG
Mr. Calvin CHENG
Mr. Eddy S. L. CHEN

Mr. TONG Wai Lun

The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK

Prof. Herman S. M. HU
Mr. WONG Po Kee
Mr. Benjamin T. C. HUNG  
(till 23 October 2023)
Ms. Camay K. M. LEE 
(since 24 October 2023)
Mr. WU Siu Hong
Mr. KWAN Kee
Dr. Simon S. F. FUNG 
Dr. Kelvin INGE
Mr. Colman C. T. CHAN
Mr. Raymond LO
Mr. Dave HO

Mr. Simon H. W. WONG

Dr. T. Brian STEVENSON

Dr. Karl C. KWOK
Dr. David T. Y. MONG
Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG
Mr. Simon S. M. LAU
Prof. LU Haitian
Mr. Vincent W. C. NG 

郭志樑博士

黃寶基先生

余國樑先生
何劍暉女士
黃曉盈女士
孔得泉先生 
(至2023年10月23日) 
李嘉美女士 
(自2023年10月24日起)
李怡苑博士 
(至2023年10月23日) 
黎志豪先生 
(自2023年10月24日起)
李漢源先生
楊穎新先生
鍾志樂先生

楊祖賜先生

湯偉倫先生

郭志樑博士
胡曉明教授
王敏超先生
黃寶基先生
何劍暉女士
冼超舜博士
陳志球博士
溫薇女士

胡曉明教授

郭志樑博士

余國樑先生
霍啟剛議員
楊祖賜先生
莫君逸先生 
(自2023年5月4日起)
鄭青雲先生 
(至2023年10月23日) 
聶繼恩女士 
(自2023年10月24日起)
陳晞文女士
陳曉峰先生
鄭家豪先生
趙不求先生
何朗秋先生
李一強博士
雲維熹先生
馬天惠女士
邱偉强先生
黃俊瑯先生

王敏超先生

胡曉明教授

黃寶基先生
何劍暉女士
孔得泉先生  
(至2023年10月23日) 
李嘉美女士 
(自2023年10月24日起)
胡偉民先生
楊偉基先生
李耀培博士
鄭家豪先生
陳浩鈴女士
方子敏女士
鄭偉邦先生
陳龍盛先生

湯偉倫先生

霍啟剛議員

胡曉明教授
黃寶基先生
孔得泉先生 
(至2023年10月23日)
李嘉美女士 
(自2023年10月24日起)
胡兆康先生
關祺先生
馮世富博士
吳繩綱醫生
陳志濤先生
羅浩然先生
何廸夫先生

黃顯榮先生 

施文信博士

郭志樑博士
蒙德揚博士
楊祖賜先生
劉世民先生
陸海天教授
伍穎聰先生

6.	 Hong Kong Sports Stars Awards Organizing Committee
	 香港傑出運動員選舉籌備委員會

9.	 Olympic House Management Committee
	 奧運大樓管理委員會

10.	Hong Kong Athletes Career and  
	 Education Department Committee
	 香港運動員就業及教育部委員會

7.	 Festival of Sport Organizing Committee
	 體育節籌備委員會

8.	 Olympic Day Organizing Committee
	 奧運日籌備委員會

11.	Audit Committee
	 審計委員會
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Director & Chairperson 
董事兼主席 

Director & Secretary 
董事兼秘書

Director & Treasurer 
董事兼司庫 

Director
董事

Director & Chairperson 
董事兼主席 

Director & Secretary 
董事兼秘書

Director & Treasurer 
董事兼司庫 

Director
董事

Director & Chairperson 
董事兼主席 

Director & Secretary 
董事兼秘書

Director & Treasurer 
董事兼司庫 

Director
董事

Chairperson
主席

Member
委員

Secretary cum 
Member
秘書兼委員

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK 

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG 

Mr. Derrick L. W. WONG 

Dr. Karl C. KWOK  
Mr. TONG Wai Lun 
Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG
Mr. WONG Po Kee 
Ms. Fay K. F. HO 

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK 

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG 

Mr. Derrick L. W. WONG 

Dr. Karl C. KWOK
Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG  

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK 

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG 

Mr. Derrick L. W. WONG 

Prof. Herman S. M. HU
The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK
Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG 
Mr. WONG Po Kee

Mr. Nick H. F. CHAN

Mr. Symon Y. W. WONG

Mr. Edmond K. W. WONG

霍震霆先生

楊祖賜先生

黃良威先生

郭志樑博士
湯偉倫先生
王敏超先生
黃寶基先生 
何劍暉女士

霍震霆先生

楊祖賜先生

黃良威先生

郭志樑博士
王敏超先生

霍震霆先生

楊祖賜先生

黃良威先生

胡曉明教授
霍啟剛議員
王敏超先生
黃寶基先生

陳曉峰先生

黃汝榮先生

黃基偉先生

1.	 Management Company of Olympic House Limited
	 奧運大樓管理有限公司

2.	 SF&OC Sports Legacy Company Limited
	 港協暨奧委會奧夢成真有限公司

3.	 Hong Kong Olympic Fan Club Limited
	 香港奧林匹克之友有限公司

Convenor
召集人

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Member
委員

Chairperson
主席

Member
委員

Mr. MA Ching Nam

Mr. TANG King Shing
Dr. York Y. N. CHOW

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG

To be confirmed 
(representatives of 
appropriate NSAs 
nominated by the 
Chairperson)

Mr. Peter BROWN

Mr. Nick H. F. CHAN
Mr. Abraham K. H. CHENG

馬清楠先生

鄧竟成先生
周一嶽醫生

楊祖賜先生

待定 
(由主席提名合適的 
體育總會代表)

包安嵐先生

陳曉峰先生
鄭國鴻先生

Non-Standing Committees
非常設委員會

List of Boards of Affiliated Companies
關聯公司董事局

12.	Independent Steering Committee
	 獨立督導委員會

14.	International Multi-Sports Games Selection Committee
	 國際綜合項目運動會遴選委員會

13.	Election Committee
	 選舉委員會
	 (a)	 For the By-election of Officer at the General Meeting  
		  on 26 April 2023
		  於 2023 年 4 月 26 日舉行的會員大會補選委員

	 (b) 	For the Election of Officers at the Annual General  
		  Meeting on 10 December 2024
		  於 2024 年 12 月 10 日舉行的周年大會委員選舉
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Annex 2: SF&OC's Representation in Local and 
Overseas Sports Committees

附錄二 : 港協暨奧委會參與香港及海外體育界委員會

Representatives in the Committees under the HKSAR Government
香港特別行政區政府轄下委員會的代表

 

 

1.

2. 

 

3. 

 

4. 

 

5. 

 

6.

7. 

 

8.

9.

Sports Related Committee in Public Organization 
體育相關委員會 
 

Sports Commission

體育委員會

Community Sports Committee under Sports Commission

體育委員會轄下社區體育事務委員會 
 

Major Sports Events Committee under Sports 
Commission and Committees

體育委員會轄下大型體育活動事務委員會及專責委員會 

Elite Sports Committee under Sports Commission

體育委員會轄下精英體育事務委員會 
 

Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited Board of 
Directors and Committees

香港體育學院有限公司董事局及專責委員會 

Outstanding Junior Athlete Awards Judging Panel 

傑出青少年運動員選舉評審團

Hong Kong Coaching Committee

香港教練培訓委員會 
 

Hong Kong Coaching Awards Judging Panel 

香港優秀教練選舉評審團

The 9th Hong Kong Games Organising Committee 
and Standing Committee 

第九屆全港運動會籌備委員會及常務委員會

Elected Officer and Representative of 
SF&OC (*ad personam)
獲委任之本會義務委員及代表 

（* 以個人身分獲委任）

Mr. Timothy T. T. FOK	 霍震霆先生
Dr. David T. Y. MONG*	 蒙德揚博士 *

Mr. WONG Kam Po*	 黃金寶先生 *

Mr. WONG Kam Po	 黃金寶先生 

 

Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG	 王敏超先生 

 

Dr. David T. Y. MONG*	 蒙德揚博士 *

Mr. WONG Po Kee	 黃寶基先生 
 

Dr. David T. Y. MONG	 蒙德揚博士
Mr. WONG Po Kee	 黃寶基先生 
 

Mr. WONG Po Kee	 黃寶基先生

Mr. Philip K. Y. MOK	 莫君逸先生

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG	 楊祖賜先生
Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG	 王敏超先生
Mr. WONG Po Kee	 黃寶基先生 

Mr. WONG Po Kee	 黃寶基先生

Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG	 王敏超先生

Tenure Period 
任期

Current

現任

1 January 2023 to  
31 December 2024

2023年1月1日至 
2024年12月31日

1 January 2023 to  
31 December 2024

2023年1月1日至 
2024年12月31日

1 January 2023 to  
31 December 2024

2023年1月1日至 
2024年12月31日

1 April 2023 to  
31 March 2025

2023年4月1日至 
2025年3月31日

Year 2023

2023年度

Year 2024

2024年度

1 April 2023 to  
31 March 2025

2023年4月1日至 
2025年3月31日

Year 2023

2023年度

Current

現任
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Representatives in the Affiliated Organizations
本會關聯機構的代表

 

1.

2. 

3. 

4. 

5.

6.

Organization
機構

International Olympic Committee 

國際奧委會

Olympic Council of Asia

亞奧理事會

 

 

Association of National Olympic 
Committees (ANOC)

國家和地區奧委會協會 

East Asian Olympic Committees

東亞奧委會

Asian Sport for All Association 

亞洲群眾體育協會 

Court of Arbitration for Sport 

國際運動仲裁法庭

Elected Officer and Representative of SF&OC / Capacity
獲委任之本會義務委員及代表／職位

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK / Honorary Member

霍震霆先生／名譽委員

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK / Vice-President (East Asia) of 
Executive Board / Chairman of Coordination Committee

霍震霆先生／執行委員會副會長（東亞）／協調委員會主席

Mr. Ronnie M. C. WONG / Information and Statistics 
Committee Member

王敏超先生／資訊和統計委員會委員

The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK / International Relations 
Committee Member

霍啟剛議員／國際關係委員會委員

Mr. Eric K. S. FOK / Culture Committee Member

霍啟山先生／文化委員會委員

The Hon. Kenneth K. K. FOK / Esports & E Martial Art 
Committee Member

霍啟剛議員／電競及電子武術委員會委員

Mr. LEE Chun Ho / Athletes Committee Member

李振豪先生／運動員委員會委員

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK / Ex Officio Member of Executive 
Council and Chairman of ANOC Event Commission 

霍震霆先生／執行委員會當然成員及 ANOC 活動委員會主席

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK / Senior Advisor

霍震霆先生／資深顧問

Mr. Edgar J. T. YANG / Council Member 

楊祖賜先生／常務委員會委員

Mr. Philip K. Y. MOK / Rules & Sports Committee Member

莫君逸先生／規則和體育委員會委員

Dr. Julian W. CHANG / Medical Committee Chairman

張維醫生／醫務委員會主席

Mr. WONG Po Kee / Director

黃寶基先生／董事局成員

Mr. Anthony ROGERS / Arbitrator

羅傑志先生／仲裁人

Tenure Period 
任期

Current

現任

2019-2028

2019 至 2028 年度 

2019-2023

2019 至 2023 年度 

2022-2024

2022 至 2024 年度 

2023-2026

2023 至 2026 年度

Current

現任

2023-2027

2023 至 2027 年度

2023-2027

2023 至 2027 年度

Current

現任
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Annex 3: List of SF&OC's Membership as at 
31 March 2024

附錄三：截至 2024 年 3 月 31 日港協暨奧委會會員名單

1.

2.

3.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Individual Ordinary Member 

The Hon. Timothy T. T. FOK

Mr. WONG Kam Po

Ms. SZE Hang Yu

Association Ordinary Member

Victoria Recreation Club

South China Athletic Association

Chinese Young Men's Christian Association of Hong Kong 

Hong Kong, China Association of Athletics Affiliates Limited

Fencing Association of Hong Kong, China (Note 1)

The Gymnastics Association of Hong Kong, China

Handball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Rowing Association

Hong Kong China Swimming Association

The Hong Kong, China Weightlifting and Powerlifting Association Limited

Archery Association of Hong Kong, China

Badminton Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Basketball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Boxing Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Canoe Union Limited

The Cycling Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Football Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hockey Hong Kong, China

The Equestrian Federation of Hong Kong, China

The Judo Association of Hong Kong, China

Volleyball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Lawn Bowls Association of Hong Kong, China

The Miniature Football Association of Hong Kong, China Company Limited

Hong Kong, China Shooting Association

Hong Kong China Softball Association

正式個人會員

霍震霆先生

黃金寶先生

施幸余女士

正式屬會會員

域多利遊樂會

南華體育會

香港中華基督教青年會

中國香港田徑總會有限公司

中國香港劍擊總會（附註 1）

中國香港體操總會

中國香港手球總會有限公司

中國香港賽艇協會

中國香港游泳總會

中國香港舉重健力總會有限公司

中國香港射箭總會

中國香港羽毛球總會有限公司

中國香港籃球總會有限公司

中國香港拳擊總會有限公司

中國香港獨木舟總會有限公司

中國香港單車總會有限公司

中國香港足球總會有限公司

中國香港曲棍球總會

中國香港馬術總會

中國香港柔道總會

中國香港排球總會有限公司

中國香港草地滾球總會

中國香港小型足球總會有限公司

中國香港射擊聯合總會

中國香港壘球總會

As at 31 March 2024, SF&OC consisted of three "Individual Ordinary Members", 36 "Association Ordinary Members",  
18 "Associate Members" and 31 "Observers". 

截至 2024 年 3 月 31 日，港協暨奧委會共有三名「正式個人會員」、36 個「正式屬會會員」、18 個「準會員」及 31 個「觀察會員」。 
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1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

1.

2.

3.

4.

Associate Member

The Karatedo Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Kendo Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Little League Limited

The Schools Sports Federation of Hong Kong, China

Sports Association for the Physically Disabled of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong, China Sports Association for Persons with Intellectual Disability

Chinese Martial Arts Dragon and Lion Dance Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Taekwondo Association Limited

Orienteering Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Ice Hockey Association Limited

Hong Kong China Skating Union Limited

The University Sports Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Federation of Roller Sports and Skateboarding Limited

Cricket Hong Kong, China Limited

DanceSport Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Mountaineering and Climbing Union Limited

Hong Kong China Dragon Boat Association

Billiard Sports Council of Hong Kong China Limited

Association Ordinary Member

Hong Kong, China Table Tennis Association Limited

The Hong Kong, China Tennis Association Limited

Sailing Federation of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong, China Tenpin Bowling Congress Limited

Hong Kong, China Wushu Union Limited

Hong Kong, China Rugby

Squash Association of Hong Kong, China

Triathlon Association of Hong Kong China Limited

The Baseball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Windsurfing Association of Hong Kong, China

Golf Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Observer

Chinese Chess Association of Hong Kong China

Netball Hong Kong, China Limited

Shuttlecock Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Hong Kong Society for the Deaf

準會員

中國香港空手道總會有限公司

中國香港劍道協會有限公司

中國香港少年棒球聯盟有限公司

中國香港學界體育聯會

中國香港傷殘人士體育協會

中國香港智障人士體育協會

中國香港中國國術龍獅總會有限公司

中國香港跆拳道協會有限公司

中國香港定向總會有限公司

中國香港冰球總會有限公司

中國香港滑冰聯盟有限公司

中國香港大專體育協會有限公司

中國香港滾軸運動及滑板總會有限公司

中國香港板球

中國香港體育舞蹈總會有限公司 

中國香港攀山及攀登總會有限公司

中國香港龍舟總會

中國香港桌球總會有限公司

正式屬會會員

中國香港乒乓總會有限公司

中國香港網球總會有限公司

中國香港帆船運動總會

中國香港保齡球總會有限公司

中國香港武術聯會有限公司

中國香港欖球總會

中國香港壁球總會

中國香港三項鐵人總會有限公司

中國香港棒球總會有限公司

中國香港滑浪風帆會

中國香港高爾夫球協會有限公司

觀察會員

中國香港象棋總會

中國香港投球有限公司

中國香港足毽總會有限公司

香港聾人福利促進會
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5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Observer

The Go Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Contract Bridge Association Limited

Physical Fitness Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Underwater Association Limited

Karting Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Bodybuilding and Fitness Association

Sports Medicine & Sports Science Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Gateball Association Co. Limited

Hong Kong China Paragliding Association Limited

The Aviation Club of Hong Kong, China Limited

Flying Disc Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Life Saving Society

Hong Kong, China Waterski Association Limited

Ski Association of Hong Kong, China Limited   

Muaythai Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Korfball Association Limited

Woodball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Health Qi Gong Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Tug of War Association Limited

Hong Kong, China Lacrosse Association Limited

Hong Kong, China Automobile Association

Cheerleading Federation of Hong Kong China Limited

Esports Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Sport for All Confederation of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Chess Federation Limited

Dodgeball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited (Note 2)

Hapkido Hong Kong, China Limited (Note 2)

觀察會員

中國香港圍棋協會有限公司

中國香港橋牌協會有限公司

中國香港體適能總會有限公司

中國香港潛水總會有限公司

中國香港小型賽車總會有限公司

中國香港健美總會

中國香港運動醫學科學學會有限公司

中國香港門球總會有限公司

中國香港滑翔傘協會有限公司

中國香港飛行總會有限公司

中國香港飛盤總會有限公司

中國香港拯溺總會

中國香港滑水總會有限公司

中國香港滑雪總會有限公司

中國香港泰拳理事會有限公司

中國香港合球總會有限公司

中國香港木球總會有限公司

中國香港健身氣功總會有限公司

中國香港拔河總會有限公司

中國香港棍網球總會有限公司  

中國香港汽車會

中國香港啦啦隊總會有限公司  

中國香港電競總會有限公司

中國香港群眾體育聯會有限公司

中國香港國際象棋總會有限公司

中國香港閃避球總會有限公司（附註 2）

中國香港合氣道總會有限公司（附註 2）

Notes 附註
1.	The Hong Kong Fencing Association updated its registered name to "Fencing Association of Hong Kong, China", with effect from 

21 May 2024.

	 由 2024 年 5 月 21 日起，香港劍擊總會更新註冊名稱為「中國香港劍擊總會」。
2.	At the Annual General Meeting on 19 December 2023, SF&OC conferred Observer status to the Dodgeball Association of Hong Kong, 

China Limited and the Hapkido Hong Kong, China Limited with effect from 20 December 2023.  

	 本會於 2023年 12月 19日舉行的周年大會中，通過授予中國香港閃避球總會有限公司及中國香港合氣道總會有限公司「觀察會員」資格，
由 2023 年 12 月 20 日起生效。



ANNEXES
附錄

SPORTS FEDERATION & OLYMPIC COMMITTEE OF HONG KONG, CHINA
中國香港體育協會暨奧林匹克委員會

104

Annex 4: AWARDEE LIST OF SF&OC INCENTIVE AWARDS & 
JUNIOR INCENTIVE AWARDS 2023

附錄四: 港協暨奧委會獎勵計劃及青少年獎勵計劃2023得獎名單

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Incentive Awards 2023

Archery Association of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong, China Association of Athletics Affiliates Limited

Badminton Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Baseball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Billiard Sports Council of Hong Kong China Limited

Hong Kong China Bodybuilding and Fitness Association

Chinese Chess Association of Hong Kong China

Hong Kong, China Contract Bridge Association Limited

Cricket Hong Kong, China Limited

The Cycling Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

DanceSport Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Dragon Boat Association

The Equestrian Federation of Hong Kong, China

Esports Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Fencing Association of Hong Kong, China

The Football Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Go Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Golf Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Gymnastics Association of Hong Kong, China

Handball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Health Qi Gong Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Sports Association for the Physically Disabled of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong, China Sports Association for Persons with Intellectual Disability

The Judo Association of Hong Kong, China

The Karatedo Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited

Lawn Bowls Association of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong, China Mountaineering and Climbing Union Limited

Muaythai Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Federation of Roller Sports and Skateboarding Limited

Hong Kong, China Rowing Association

Hong Kong, China Rugby

Sailing Federation of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong, China Shooting Association

獎勵計劃 2023

中國香港射箭總會

中國香港田徑總會有限公司

中國香港羽毛球總會有限公司

中國香港棒球總會有限公司

中國香港桌球總會有限公司

中國香港健美總會

中國香港象棋總會

中國香港橋牌協會有限公司

中國香港板球

中國香港單車總會有限公司

中國香港體育舞蹈總會有限公司

中國香港龍舟總會

中國香港馬術總會

中國香港電競總會有限公司

中國香港劍擊總會

中國香港足球總會有限公司

中國香港圍棋協會有限公司

中國香港高爾夫球協會有限公司

中國香港體操總會

中國香港手球總會有限公司

中國香港健身氣功總會有限公司

中國香港傷殘人士體育協會

中國香港智障人士體育協會

中國香港柔道總會

中國香港空手道總會有限公司

中國香港草地滾球總會

中國香港攀山及攀登總會有限公司

中國香港泰拳理事會有限公司

中國香港滾軸運動及滑板總會有限公司

中國香港賽艇協會

中國香港欖球總會

中國香港帆船運動總會

中國香港射擊聯合總會
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34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

Incentive Awards 2023

Shuttlecock Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Skating Union Limited

Hong Kong China Softball Association

Squash Association of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong China Swimming Association

Hong Kong, China Table Tennis Association Limited

The Hong Kong, China Tennis Association Limited

Hong Kong, China Tenpin Bowling Congress Limited

Triathlon Association of Hong Kong China Limited

The University Sports Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited

Windsurfing Association of Hong Kong, China

Woodball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Wushu Union Limited

獎勵計劃 2023

中國香港足毽總會有限公司

中國香港滑冰聯盟有限公司

中國香港壘球總會

中國香港壁球總會

中國香港游泳總會

中國香港乒乓總會有限公司

中國香港網球總會有限公司

中國香港保齡球總會有限公司

中國香港三項鐵人總會有限公司

中國香港大專體育協會有限公司

中國香港滑浪風帆會

中國香港木球總會有限公司

中國香港武術聯會有限公司

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Junior Incentive Awards 2023

Hong Kong, China Association of Athletics Affiliates Limited

Badminton Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Baseball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Billiard Sports Council of Hong Kong China Limited

Chinese Chess Association of Hong Kong China

Hong Kong, China Contract Bridge Association Limited

The Cycling Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Dragon Boat Association

The Equestrian Federation of Hong Kong, China

Fencing Association of Hong Kong, China

The Football Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Golf Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

The Gymnastics Association of Hong Kong, China

Handball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Sports Association for the Physically Disabled of Hong Kong, China

The Judo Association of Hong Kong, China

The Karatedo Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Korfball Association Limited

Lawn Bowls Association of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong, China Mountaineering and Climbing Union Limited

Orienteering Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Federation of Roller Sports and Skateboarding Limited

青少年獎勵計劃 2023

中國香港田徑總會有限公司

中國香港羽毛球總會有限公司

中國香港棒球總會有限公司

中國香港桌球總會有限公司

中國香港象棋總會

中國香港橋牌協會有限公司

中國香港單車總會有限公司

中國香港龍舟總會

中國香港馬術總會

中國香港劍擊總會

中國香港足球總會有限公司

中國香港高爾夫球協會有限公司

中國香港體操總會

中國香港手球總會有限公司

中國香港傷殘人士體育協會

中國香港柔道總會

中國香港空手道總會有限公司

中國香港合球總會有限公司

中國香港草地滾球總會

中國香港攀山及攀登總會有限公司

中國香港定向總會有限公司

中國香港滾軸運動及滑板總會有限公司
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Hong Kong, China Rowing Association

Sailing Federation of Hong Kong, China

The Schools Sports Federation of Hong Kong, China

Shuttlecock Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong China Skating Union Limited

Hong Kong China Softball Association

Squash Association of Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong China Swimming Association

Hong Kong, China Table Tennis Association Limited

Hong Kong, China Taekwondo Association Limited

The Hong Kong, China Tennis Association Limited

Hong Kong, China Tenpin Bowling Congress Limited

Triathlon Association of Hong Kong China Limited

The University Sports Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited

Volleyball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Windsurfing Association of Hong Kong, China

Woodball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

Hong Kong, China Wushu Union Limited
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中國香港賽艇協會

中國香港帆船運動總會

中國香港學界體育聯會

中國香港足毽總會有限公司

中國香港滑冰聯盟有限公司

中國香港壘球總會

中國香港壁球總會

中國香港游泳總會

中國香港乒乓總會有限公司

中國香港跆拳道協會有限公司

中國香港網球總會有限公司

中國香港保齡球總會有限公司

中國香港三項鐵人總會有限公司

中國香港大專體育協會有限公司

中國香港排球總會有限公司

中國香港滑浪風帆會

中國香港木球總會有限公司

中國香港武術聯會有限公司


